
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

M&CC Public Meeting 

City Hall, Cumberland, MD 

 

DATE:    August 16, 2022 

 

 

OPEN SESSION - 6:15 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Statement of closed meeting held August 16, 2022 

Presentations 

1. Certificates of Recognition presented to organizations who supported and unified the community 

through festivals and events 

Director's Reports 

(A) Public Works 

1. Maintenance Division monthly report for July 2022 

(B) Fire 

1. Fire Department monthly report for July, 2022 

(C) Police 

1. Police Department monthly report for July, 2022 

(D) Utilities - Flood, Water, Sewer 

1. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for June, 2022 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Closed and Work Session Minutes of April 5, 2022, the Closed and Work 

Session Minutes of April 12, 2022, and the Work and Regular Session Minutes of April 19, 2022 



Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance No. 3922 (2nd and 3rd readings) - (ZTA #22-02) to amend the definition for 

the Residential-Office (R-O) Zoning District set forth in Section 25-101(b)(5) of the City 

Code and amend the Use Regulations Table set forth in Section 25-143 to include 

"Dwelling Units / Mixed Uses" as a permitted use in the R-O District 

2. Ordinance No. 3923 (2nd and 3rd readings) - accepting the bid from Kevin and Anita 

Thacker for the purchase of surplus properties at 7 and 9 Arch Street for the amount of 

$100.00 and authorizing execution of a deed to effect the conveyance 

3. Ordinance No. 3924 (2nd and 3rd readings) - accepting the bid from Kevin and Anita 

Thacker for the purchase of surplus property at 105 Grand Avenue for the amount of 

$100.00 and authorizing execution of a deed to effect the conveyance 

New Business 

(A) Resolutions 

1. Resolution No. 2022-06 (1 reading) - granting the Cumberland Outdoor Club a property 

tax credit for tax years 2022-2023 pursuant to Section 9-302(f) of the Tax Property 

Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland 

(B) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance 3925 (1st reading) - accepting the bid from Floyd F. Gregory for the 

purchase of surplus property located at 728 Baker Street for the amount of $500.00 

(C) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

1. Order 27,051 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) with the Allegany County Health Department to receive grant 

funding in the amount of $14,241 for overtime for officers to conduct drug interdiction 

events with the goal of reducing the illicit supply of opioids in Cumberland and Allegany 

County 

2. Order 27,052 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) with the Allegany County Health Department to receive grant 

funding in the amount of $3,000 for officers to work medication pickup and takeback 

events in an attempt to prevent opioid misuse 

3. Order 27,053 - authorizing Special Taxing District residential exemptions for 45 N. 

Centre Street ($681.87); 43-45 N. Liberty Street ($203.99); 50-52 N. Centre Street 

($300.73); 107 S. Centre St. (668.21); and 47 Baltimore Street ($372.59) 

4. Order 27,054 - authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY23 MCIN Grant in the 

amount of $256,878.00 to be used for overtime to support crime reduction patrols, 

targeted enforcement, intelligence gathering, apprehension of violent criminals, and 

streamlining information sharing to address gang and drug trafficking 



5. Order 27,055 - authorizing the Sole Source purchase of water meters and smartpoints 

from L/B Water Service in the amount not-to-exceed $170,000 for FY23 

6. Order 27,056 - authorizing the purchase of 2K feet of 6" C900 PVC water pipe from L/B 

Water Service, Inc. for the Avondale Ave. Water Line Project in the not-to-exceed 

amount of $33,280 for FY23 

7. Order 27,057 - accepting the proposal of Bennett, Brewer & Associates for the "Final 

Design of the South End Water Main Replacement Project (2-22-W)" in the not-to-

exceed lump sum amount of $221,664 to include additional coordination and field 

investigation, permitting, base mapping and finalization of plans and specs 

8. Order 27,058 - authorizing the execution of a Quitclaim Bill of Sale to transfer 

ownership of the Fayette Street Bridge from CSX to the City 

9. Order 27,059 - authorizing the execution of a Construction Agreement with CSX 

outlining the terms for the removal and replacement of the Fayette St. Bridge (43-18-BR) 

10. Order 27,060 - authorizing the execution of Change Order No. 2 with Carl Belt, Inc. for 

the "Decatur Street 24" Crosstown Water Main Replacement Project (31-17-W)" adding 

51 calendar days for final completion, setting the final completion date at September 30, 

2022, and increasing the contract price to the not-to-exceed amount of $79,966.60 due to 

additional materials and needed work.  This brings the new total contract price to 

$3,192,852.55. 

11. Order 27,061 - authorizing the execution of Change Order No. 1 to the Non-Residential 

Mowing Contract (2022-15-M) to add and remove properties recently acquired or sold by 

the City at various locations within City limits for the not-to-exceed cost of $1,500.00, 

bringing the new contract amount to $42,500 

12. Order 27,062 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) with the Family Crisis Resource Center for the reimbursement of 

police overtime costs not to exceed $8,000 to provide Domestic Violence Response Team 

(DVRT) follow-ups 

13. Order 27,063 - authorizing the City Administrator to execute a Letter of Agreement with 

Carver Community Center, Inc., stating that Carver accepts the assignment of the African 

American Heritage Preservation Program Grant Agreement that was originally assigned 

to the City effective April 28, 2021, and that the City agrees to provide matching funds 

for the grant in the amount of $100,000 as well as construction management and grant 

administration services 

14. Order 27,064 - adopting the Strategic Economic Development Plan dated February, 

2022, prepared by RKG Associates, inc. 

15. Order 27,065 - accepting the proposal from Local Government Insurance Trust (LGIT) 

to provide insurance coverages for FY23 for property, general and excess liability, police 

legal liability, auto comprehensive and liability, and boiler/machinery for the amount not-

to-exceed $341,434.00 



16. Order 27,066 - accepting the proposal from CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc. to provide 

Public Officials Liability coverage for FY23 through Ace American Insurance for the 

amount not-to-exceed $25,067 

17. Order 27,067 - accepting the Sole Source proposal of Belt Paving, Inc., to pave Footer 

Place and the Decatur Street cross-streets, to include Davidson, Charles, Fulton, and 

Glenn, for the not-to-exceed lump sum cost of $147,767 

18. Order 27,068 - accepting the proposal from CBIZ Insurance to provide general and 

excess liability coverage through Northland Casualty Co. for the Cedar Street CSO 

Underground Sewage Line with a rider for the Industrial Boulevard / RT 51 Water Line, 

effective July 28, 2022 to July 28, 2023, for the amount not-to-exceed $26,559 

19. Order 27,069 - approving a $30,000 forgiveable loan through the Revolving Loan Fund 

to Dominic Dearcangelis to supplement Allegany County funding for a renovation 

project at 432 N. Centre Street 

20. Order 27,070 - accepting the proposal from PMA Companies to provide Workers 

Compensation Insurance for Fiscal Year 2023 for the estimated amount of $1,005,788 

and authorizing execution of a Prefund Deductible Reimbursement and Security 

Agreement to effect the coverage 

21. Order 27,071 - accepting the sole source proposal from Amazon Web Services to 

provide server hosting and support services for FY23 for the amount not-to-exceed 

$30,000 

22. Order 27,072 - accepting the proposal from CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc. to provide 

risk management services for FY23 for the amount not-to-exceed $34,125 

23. Order 27,073 - appointing individuals to various boards and commissions of the City 

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  



File Attachments for Item:

. Maintenance Division monthly report for July 2022





















File Attachments for Item:

. Fire Department monthly report for July, 2022











File Attachments for Item:

. Police Department monthly report for July, 2022











File Attachments for Item:

. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for June, 2022











File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of the Closed and Work Session Minutes of April 5, 2022, the Closed and Work Session 

Minutes of April 12, 2022, and the Work and Regular Session Minutes of April 19, 2022



 

 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
Closed Session Minutes 
City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502             
2nd Floor Conference Room 
Tuesday, April 5, 2022; 5:00 p.m. 
  
The Mayor and City Council convened in public session and immediately moved into executive 
session pursuant to Section 3-305 (b)(14) of the General Provisions Article of the Annotated 
Code of Maryland to discuss the award of surplus properties that were recently solicited for 
sale through public bid. 
 
MOTION: Motion to enter into Closed Session was made by Council Member Frazier, seconded 
by Council Member Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 
 
PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, 
Joseph George and Laurie Marchini. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 
Woodring, City Clerk; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services 
 



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, April 5, 2022, 5:35 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Joe 

George, and Laurie Marchini.   

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie Woodring, 

City Clerk; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services  
 

 

I. PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA REVIEW-APRIL 5, 2022 
  

 

Mayor Morriss reviewed the presentations, proclamations, reports, and minutes, and called for 

any questions or comments.  Councilman George inquired about the Filter Building Pilot Study, 

advising that the update states that it’s waiting on M&CC.  Mr. Silka replied that he would check 

on it and get back to Council. 

 

Mr. Silka advised that the 7 orders on the agenda are pretty much all housekeeping, and called for 

any questions or information needed about any of the orders.  He advised that regarding Order 

26,989 – Fantasy Gambling, there are 30 licenses available in the entire state of Maryland, and 

said this order just allows the brick-and-mortar buildings in the City, with the City not being 

responsible for inspections, etc. since it’s all being regulated by the State. 

 

II. HOTEL/MOTEL AWARD OF FUNDING DISCUSSION 

 

Mr. Silka advised that he had had discussions with Ms. Woodring about how to handle the 

funding awards, and said they came up with 3 categories: 

 

1) Certain events are funded every year – consider putting them into a contributions line item 

(like Dragonboat Races, and basketball tournaments). 

 

Mayor Morriss advised that the City will still be approving these events, but doing it in a 

different budget.  He added that if for some reason there is no event, then there will be no 

contribution that year. 

 

There was discussion about how to determine the amount of the contribution. Mayor Morriss 

explained that they will look at the consistency, what level M&CC usually fund, and decide 

through a budgetary process whether or not to raise the funding amount, if more funds are 

requested.  It was mentioned that the funding will come out of the General Fund. 

 

2) Historically, there has been poor record-keeping and accounting of funding.  Do we want to 

be holding people accountable for receiving funds and where funding is spent?  Are we 

willing to let organizations know when they aren’t compliant in documentation? 

 

 



2 
 

Mayor Morriss discussed “heads in beds.”  He stated that by not making the criteria too 

specific, it gives M&CC more flexibility. 

 

There was discussion about how events/organizations contribute to Hotel/Motel tax itself, if 

not by the “head in beds” criteria.  Mayor Morriss stated that it’s still part of the criteria, but 

by making it not too specific it allows flexibility. 

  

3) How to get the projects before you.  In the past there were public hearings, which stopped 

with Covid.  Is M&CC still comfortable with not having public hearings? 

 

There was discussion about how public hearings have been in the past.  It was suggested that 

if more information is needed, staff can get additional information rather than have a public 

hearing. 

 

Mr. Silka stated that’s how they will proceed moving forward, and said they will inform 

M&CC which organizations will be separated out into the contributions line item as they go 

through the budget process.   

 

  Consensus on no public hearing 

 

III.  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL UPDATES 

 

  
Councilman Frazier reminded about the Fair Housing Proclamation in the regular session tonight, 

and advised that there would be a Fair Housing event at AC on April 20th from 9:00 a.m. – 1:00 

p.m. to discuss landlord and tenant rights. 

 

Councilman George reminded about the Planning and Zoning agenda item tonight, and said Ms. 

Morgan Alban, City Engineering Consultant, is working on the organization of neighborhood 

meetings this summer and fall.  He added that they will have a public meeting on April 25th to 

discuss an amendment to a section of the residential and office zones.  He stated that more 

information will be forthcoming. 

 

Councilman Cioni discussed Let’s Beautify Cumberland’s Day of Caring and Sharing on May 

13th, and said City staff volunteers had been organized by Allison Layton, Citizen Services 

Representatives.  He advised that there was a good list of projects throughout the City. 

 

Councilman Cioni advised that concerning Parks and Recreation, BMX track people have heard 

word of the skate park, and now want to know “where’s ours?”  He said they are a nice 

organization, well organized, but not an extensive group, and he wanted to suggest if M&CC can 

find some source of money to help them out.   

 

The Councilman also mentioned re-blacktopping Pine Avenue playground and putting up 

basketball hoops.  He advised that Jason Deal, Street Superintendent, said the City has hoops, and 

said he will talk with Robert Smith, City Engineer, and see if Columbia Gas can help out while 

they’re working with blacktop in that area. 

 

There was discussion about other playgrounds wanting help to refurbish and open back up.  

Mayor Morriss discussed David Smith and City Reach, which brought in all their own equipment 



3 
 

and volunteer labor.  He said that if an organization wants to partner with the City and raise 

money for funding, M&CC is definitely open to that. 

 

Councilwoman Marchini discussed the email from Robert Smith regarding an increase of over 

$1M for tap money for the Baltimore Street Project, which she stated would require somewhat of 

a match. 

 

The Councilwoman also advised that Community Legacy met last week, discussing projects, and 

referenced the Civic Master Plan, which she borrowed from CEDC.  She said they will be using 

that as a guide regarding projects. 

 

Councilman George advised that the Evitts Creek Steering Committee meets April 21st at 10:00 

a.m. in Centreville, PA. 

 

Mayor Morriss advised about the Spring Fling Express at the WMSR on Saturdays and Sundays, 

up to Helmstetter’s Curve and back, with games for the kids and family activities.  He also 

mentioned the Frostburg Fliers, and May Dinner Trains, Murder Mysteries and brunches on 

weekends. 

 

The Mayor also mentioned the Arts Council and the Allegany National Photography Competition 

and Reception last Saturday, and said a local photographer, Michael Thompson, came in 1st Place 

for a photo of Constitution Park Pool. 

 

Mayor Morriss also mentioned he and Councilman Cioni had seen Damn Yankees at the Embassy 

Theatre last weekend, said it was a great show, and added that it is currently still playing. 

 

Brian Gowan, WCBC, asked for more information about 19 Frederick Street.  Mayor Morriss 

advised they have run into some stumbling blocks and said they are going to re-evaluate the 

building structurally to determine the next steps.  He said at this point, they are taking it off the 

table. 

 

Greg Larry, Cumberland Times-News, asked if acquiring 306 Fayette will help with construction 

of the new bridge.  Mayor Morriss replied yes, and said if it’s required by the engineer, it will be 

removed. 

 

 

III.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:14 p.m. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 
 Minutes approved  



 

 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
Closed Session Minutes 
City Hall, 57 N. Liberty Street, Cumberland, MD 21502             
2nd Floor Conference Room 
Tuesday, April 12, 2022; 4:00 p.m. 
  
The Mayor and City Council convened in public session and immediately moved into executive 
session pursuant to Section 3-305 (b)(1), (3), (4), & (14) of the General Provisions Article of the 
Annotated Code of Maryland to discuss 1) the transfer of a certain parcel of land to the CEDC; 
2) the acquisition of a property located along Messick Road and negotiations regarding a 
potential tenant for the property; 3) potential development projects at the M&T Building; and 4) 
CEDC Board of Director appointment. 
 
MOTION: Motion to enter into Closed Session was made by Council Member Frazier, seconded 
by Council Member Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 
 
PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, 
Joseph George (via phone), and Laurie Marchini. 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 
Woodring, City Clerk; Robert Smith, Operations Manager of Utilities; Matt Miller, CEDC 
Executive Director; Stu Czapski, CEDC Economic Development Specialist 
 



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, April 12, 2022, 5:05 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Joe 

George, and Laurie Marchini.   

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie Woodring, 

City Clerk; Robert Smith, City Engineer; Matt Miller, CEDC Executive Director; Stu Czapski, Economic 

Development Specialist  

 

Media:  Greg Larry, Cumberland Times-News 
 

 

I. BALTIMORE ST. ACCESS PROJECT UPDATE 
  

 

 MITIGATION PLAN 
 

Mr. Miller advised that the plan has been finalized and they are sending it out to print.  He stated 

that a lot of time and research went into it, and said McClarran & Williams added finishing 

touches to it.  He said that hard copies would be delivered to all business and building owners, as 

well as residents downtown.  Mr. Czapski added that Downtown Manager Melinda Kelleher has 

tentatively scheduled June 8th for the official review of the mitigation plan. 

 

There was discussion about parking needs.  Mr. Miller advised that it has been recommended to 

lift parking fees during construction.  Mr. Czapski noted that they had a meeting a while back 

regarding parking enforcement during construction, and what options would be available, like 

maybe making the first hour or two free.  Mayor Morriss cautioned that they need to be careful 

with however it’s done, but said M&CC does understand the problem. 

 

Mr. Miller stated that they have had several meetings and think-tanks, and said the Baltimore 

Street Access Committee meets bi-weekly now, with representation from every aspect downtown, 

looking at contingencies.  Mayor Morriss advised that there has been extensive community input 

from business owners and organizations.  Mr. Miller stated that with the book they’re giving the 

message that the City is committed to assisting throughout the process. 

 

Councilman George asked if there had been any discussion with the current owners of the Times-

News about opening up their parking lot in the evenings for restaurant patrons.  Mr. Czapski 

noted that no parking will be lost, since the work will be only on Baltimore Street, but said it 

would, in fact, make it more convenient for them to come.  He stated, though, that they have not 

spoken to Times-News directly. 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

II. CEDC STRATEGIC PLAN RE-ASSESSMENT 

 

Mr. Czapski advised that RKG has finished the work, and said the CEDC is currently proofing 

the final draft.  He stated that Mr. Hutcherson will present it to M&CC in an upcoming work 

session in May or June. 

 

 

III.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 5:20 p.m. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 

 
 Minutes approved  



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Marjorie A. Woodring 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Regular Meeting 

City Hall Council Chambers, 57 N. Liberty St., Cumberland 

 

DATE:    April 19, 2022  

 

 

I. OPEN SESSION – 6:15 p.m. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III.  Roll Call 

 PRESENT: 

 Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 

 Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 

 Councilman Joseph P. George (via phone) 

 Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

 President Raymond M. Morriss 

 

Also Present: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 

Woodring, City Clerk; Ruth Davis-Rogers, Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator; Morgan 

Alban, GIS Specialist; Captain Jim Burt, CPD Administrative Services; Shannon Adams, Fire 

Chief; Delegate Mike McKay 

 

Mayor Morriss acknowledged Delegate Michael McKay in attendance this evening. 

 

IV.  Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Summary Statement of closed meeting held April 12, 2022 

Mayor Morriss announced that a Closed Meeting had been held on Tuesday, April 12, 2022 

at 4:00 p.m., and read into the record a summary of that meeting which is attached hereto 

and made a part of these minutes as required under Section 3-306 (c)(2) of the General 

Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

V.   Director's Reports 



Motion to approve the reports was made by Councilman Frazier, seconded by 

Councilwoman Marchini, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

(A) Public Works 

1. Maintenance Division monthly report for March, 2022 

(B) Fire 

1. Fire Department monthly report for March, 2022 

(C) Police 

1. Police Department monthly report for March, 2022 

(D) Utilities – Flood, Water, Sewer 

1. Utilities Division Flood/Water/Sewer monthly report for March, 2022 

 

VI. Approval of Minutes 

Motion to approve the minutes was made by Councilman Cioni, seconded by Councilman 

Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

1. Approval of the Closed Session No. 1, Work Session, and Closed Session No. 2 Minutes of 

December 14, 2021, and Regular Session Minutes of December 21, 2021 

VII. Public Hearings 

1. Public Hearing - to receive comment on a proposed ordinance to amend Section 25-23 of the 

City Zoning Code (ZTA #22-01) to 1) establish a definition for "Gambling Facility," and 2) 

amend the Use Regulation Table in Section 25-132 to incorporate the "Gambling Facility" 

use into its terms.  

Hearing convened:  6:39 p.m. 

Ms. Alban provided a PowerPoint presentation, and a little background on the State of 

Maryland passing sports wagering of fantasy competitions in 2021.  She explained that 

the current zoning ordinance does not address the conduct of these activities in the City, 

and said that the proposed ZTA #22-01 would amend the current ordinance.  Ms. Alban 

discussed the areas and zones within the City limits that these activities would be 

permitted, which was outlined on the map in the PowerPoint presentation.  Ms. Alban 

also provided a timeline of the procedural history of the proposed amendment, which is 

also listed in the PowerPoint presentation.   Ms. Alban opened the floor for questions or 

comments. 

Councilwoman Marchini asked if this amendment allows the creation of an on-site 

location to place a bet.  Ms. Alban explained that it does, and said it’s a specific system 

that a business would have to apply to accept fantasy bets, and added that they would 

have to have the appropriate licensing. 

Mr. Cohen advised that there are only a limited number of licenses in the State, and said 

they are hopeful that there will be a successful candidate in this area.   



Mr. Silka explained that the first 35 licenses are for brick-and-mortar facilities, and said 

there is a second allotment of about 65 licenses for on-line capability.  

Hearing adjourned:  6:43 p.m. 

 

VIII. New Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance 3910 (1st reading) - accepting the bid from C3 Home Renovations LLC in the 

amount of $52,963.40 for the purchase of City-owned surplus property at 502 Regina 

Avenue, which was offered for public sale in the 2022 Request for Bids for Surplus Property 

Round IV.  No other bids were received. 

  Mr. Silka advised that this was a property that was put out with a minimum bid of $50K. 

 FIRST READING:  The ordinance was presented in title only for its first reading.  Motion 

to accept the first reading and table until next meeting was made by Councilman Frazier, 

seconded by Councilwoman Marchini, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

 

2. Ordinance 3911 (1st reading) - accepting the bid from Richard A. Pravlik in the amount of 

$ 2,000 for the purchase of City-owned surplus property at 309 S. Cedar Street, which was 

offered for public sale in the 2022 Request for Bids for Surplus Property Round IV, and 

rejecting all other bids. 

 

Mr. Silka advised that there were two identical bids of $2K submitted for this property, 

and stated that the bid that is being recommended is the most complete bid with intended 

use, and gave the most complete development timeline. 

 FIRST READING:  The ordinance was presented in title only for its first reading.  Motion 

to accept the first reading and table until next meeting was made by Councilwoman 

Marchini, seconded by Councilman Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 

3. Ordinance 3912 (1st reading) - accepting the bid from Del and Del Allegany Properties 

LLC in the amount of $ 3,500 for the purchase of City-owned surplus property at 107/109 S. 

Allegany Street, which was offered for public sale in the 2022 Request for Bids for Surplus 

Property Round IV, and rejecting all other bids. 

Mr. Silka advised that there were three bids for this property, but stated that this was the 

lowest and the only completed bid package received. 

 FIRST READING:  The ordinance was presented in title only for its first reading.  Motion 

to accept the first reading and table until next meeting was made by Councilwoman 

Marchini, seconded by Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 5-0.  

(B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

Mr. Silka reviewed each item on the Consent Agenda, and Mayor Morriss called for 

questions or comments.  Motion to approve all items was made by Councilman Cioni,                  

seconded by Councilman Frazier, and was passed on a vote of 5-0. 



 Order 26,991 - authorizing execution of a Certificate of Satisfaction acknowledging that the 

indebtedness secured by a Deed of Trust made by Michael and Cheryl Maistros, dated 

August 29, 2003, and pertaining to 7 Decatur Street (Allegany County Land Records Book 

1026, Page 298), has been fully paid and the lien is hereby released. 

Mr. Silka advised that this was an old deed of trust that was found through a closing, that 

was never released. 

 Order 26,992 - rejecting the bid for the Municipal Service Center Pole Building Project (28-

21-M) from Harbel, Inc. in the amount of $219,226.00 due to the lack of budgeted funds 

needed to meet the bid amount, accepting the direct quote from Kauffman Metals in the 

amount not to exceed $64,895 and rejecting all other quotes. 

Mr. Silka advised that after the bid came out high in the competitive round, per the City’s 

purchasing policy three quotations were submitted and received, with Kauffman Metals 

coming back the lowest. 

 Order 26,993 - declaring City-owned real estate parcels collectively known as the "Former 

Site of the Memorial Hospital" as surplus and acknowleding the intent to transfer said 

parcels to the Cumberland Economic Development Corporation per terms of the 

Memorandum of Understanding dated July 21, 2015. 

 Order 26,994 - approving Amendment No. 10-03112022 to the Community Development 

Block Grant Program. 

Mr. Silka advised that order authorizes the re-allocation of surplus funds from the 

emergency homeless prevention program to the Allegany Youth Programs Center.  Mr. 

Silka read a statement from Ms. Lee Borror about the current state of the CDBG:   

“There are delays to the formula granting fund calculations for 2022 awarded by 

the DHUD.  The M&CC will not formalize the plan until exact funding amounts 

have been released.  At that time, there will be a new 30-day public hearing 

period preceding the M&CC vote.” 

 Order 26,995 - approving Substantial Amendment No. 2 to reprogram Community 

Development Block Grant CARES Act Funding by amending the 2020 Annual Action Plan 

in response to the needs of residents affected by the Coronavirus pandemic. 

Mr. Silka advised that this order authorizes the re-allocation of revenue from the HRDC 

emergency fund and small business allotment that was surplus-funded, and takes it to the 

broadband initiative, Youth Rehabilitation Center, the Gilchrist gymnasium and the 

Family Crisis Resource Center Violence Hotline.  

 Order 26,996 - Order authorizing execution of a Community Legacy Program Grant 

Agreement with the Department of Housing and Community Development regarding the 

disbursement and use of $50,000 in funding for the Residental Accessibility Improvement 

Project, and authorizing the City Comptroller to accept the funding. 

Mr. Silka advised that allows owner-occupied accessibility projects in homes that meet 

the income threshold, with preference given to elderly and disabled people 



 Order 26,997 - Order authorizing execution of a Community Legacy Program Grant 

Agreement with the Department of Housing and Community Development regarding the 

disbursement and use of $150,000 in funding for the Cumberland Main Streets Connection 

Project, and authorizing the City Comptroller to accept the funding. 

Mr. Silka advised that this assists in the Baltimore Street project by financing sprinkler 

taps and fiber connections to buildings within the project zone. 

 Order 26,998 - accepting the bid from EZ Out, Inc. for the Virginia Avenue Demolition 

Project (CD2022-01) in the lump sum amount not to exceed $116,230, and rejecting all other 

bids. 

 Order 26,999 - accepting the quote from R. L. Abatement, Inc., for the removal and disposal 

of asbestos containing materials pertaining to the Virginia Avenue Demolition Project 

(CD2022-01) in the amount not to exceed $42,550 and rejecting all other quotes.  

  Mr. Silka advised that Orders 26,998 and 26,999 address the blight on Virginia Avenue. 

 Order 27,000 - declaring certain City-owned vehicles and equipment to be surplus and 

authorizing them for sale or trade-in. 

  

IX. Public Comments 

 No Comments 

 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 
 

X. Adjournment  

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 

 

 Minutes approved on ______________________ 

 

 Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor _____________________________ 

 

 ATTEST: Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk ___________________________ 



1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, April 19, 2022, 5:00 p.m. 
 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni, Eugene Frazier, Joe 

George (via phone), and Laurie Marchini.   

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie Woodring, 

City Clerk; Ken Tressler, Director of Administrative Services; Mark Gandolfi, City Comptroller; Ruth 

Davis-Rogers, Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator 

 

 

I. FY23 INITIAL BUDGET PRESENTATION 

 

Mr. Silka reviewed the FY23 budget schedule, and provided a timeline:  April 23rd - 25th there 

will be advertisement of the constant yield notice.  May 3rd will be the constant yield hearing and 

budget revisions, with the first budget ordinance on May 17th, followed by the 2nd and 3rd readings 

and adoption on June 5th. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi reviewed the budget highlights in his PowerPoint presentation, and said that ARPA 

funds created a significant positive impact, along with a $2.3M surplus.  He discussed MPA and 

said the GF assistance balloons to over $200K in FY25.  Mr. Gandolfi advised on the different 

funding and grants for the DDC, and discussed the negative cash flow for water and trash funds; 

however, he advised that there will not be a rate increase due to adequate cash reserves.   

 

Mr. Gandolfi advised on the 3% COLA for non-union employees, and Police and Fire unions 

each receiving a 2% + longevity per contract terms.  He also advised on the grant and financial 

assistance for FY23 and the new equipment and capital projects debt, and reviewed discretionary 

grant matches and special programs.  He added that they expect a substantial increase in 

unassigned fund balance of $3.2M for the revised FY22 budget.  Mr. Gandolfi continued to 

review his PowerPoint presentation, going over ARPA funds being utilized for various projects, 

and the key points of Assessable Real Property Tax Base, and the Constant Yield rate of $1.0354. 

 

Mr. Tressler advised on health insurance costs and reviewed the breakdown of costs on the 

PowerPoint slide, and said they are expecting a significant refund.  He discussed expected claims 

and explained stop loss insurance and aggregate insurance as related to catastrophic claims.  He 

also discussed the Police and Fire unions, and advised on their increases.  Mr. Tressler said they 

are suggesting a cost-neutral reorganization in Engineering and Utilities, and advised that the 

information will be reviewed with M&CC at the next work/closed session.  He added that within 

the City there are 13 vacant positions that they are expecting to fill sometime in the year. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi reviewed the slides for FY23 capital equipment, capital expenditures, and capital 

projects for GF, WF, and SF.  He advised that for capital equipment there will be phone system, 

computer, and security camera upgrades, new vehicles, and new equipment.  Mr. Gandolfi also 

said new debt will be required for various projects, but said they are expecting $100M in grants. 

He reviewed upgrades to City Hall, Public Safety Building, bridges, the Baltimore Street project, 



2 
 

light improvements, Constitution Park upgrades, and miscellaneous paving projects.  He reviewed 

the South End water main replacement, 4” to 6” water main replacements, and the new filter 

building design projects.  It was noted that the Decatur Street Water Line Replacement Project 

will be completed in FY23. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi reviewed projects for the SF, and stated that it’s dominated by the 78” Pipeline 

project, Evitts Creek CSO Phase III and Phase IV.  He explained Debt Service Requirements – up 

slightly from what he advised previously - and noted that it is manageable for existing and new 

FY23 debt.  He also explained that FY23 Proprietary Funds maintain a strong cash position, with 

no rate increases proposed.  He advised that most of the non-major Governmental Funds set up 

for specific purposes such as DDC, CDBG, police grants, special projects, etc.  He stated that 

there will be almost $4M in street projects in FY23. 

 

Mr. Tressler reviewed GF FY22/FY23 comparisons, and said some of the biggest increases are 

ARPA and ARPA revenue loss, and said there will be an increase in unassigned fund balance of 

$3.2M in FY22, and $2.3M in FY23, putting the City in the best financial position it’s been in for 

a while. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi advised on the GF FY22/23 Department Budget and pointed out the increases and 

decreases.  He also reviewed Discretionary Expenditures and said that one of the ARPA projects 

the City has will pair with Code Enforcement to help homeowners afford corrective actions. 

 

Councilman George asked if the RKG presentation recommended establishing a marketing 

budget to help market the City.  He also suggested trying to include some engineering costs of the 

potential skate park in the FY23 budget.  The Councilman also mentioned the COLA for 

employees, the cost of fuel and equipment, and recruitment and minimum wage challenges.  He 

said he thinks they need to maintain the existing tax rate, and said he doesn’t want to get into the 

position in 2025 where they have to take a significant increase in revenue to make up for potential 

deficits. 

 

Mr. Silka explained why money wasn’t included for marketing the City, saying that since they 

haven’t had the final presentation yet, they can find funding down the road once the plan is 

decided, and then develop a budget around that.  Councilman George agreed, saying as long as 

they can find some funds at some point in 2023 for marketing.  Mr. Tressler said there’s also the 

potential for the CEDC to generate some cash through sales of properties. 

 

Mayor Morriss suggested consulting with Mr. Smith regarding the Councilman’s skate park 

question.  Mr. Tressler advised that there is a place holder for $150K for Constitution Park, and 

suggested utilizing part of that for the skate park engineering.  Mr. Silka advised that they are also 

looking at other grant opportunities that could fund a significant part of it. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi continued with the presentation, saying they are expecting to finish FY22 with a 

$3.2M surplus, and a potential $2.3M surplus in FY23, which he advised means almost $11M in 

unassigned fund balance, with a $4.8M cushion. 

There was discussion about putting more money in property removal.  Mr. Silka explained that 

they are almost maxed out to capacity and said they need a budget number they know that they 

can spend.  He said they are comfortable at the rate they are at, and if may be a stretch to do 

more.  Mr. Tressler noted that they did actually increase it, but said they are having issues in 

closing property acquisitions. 

 



3 
 

In response to that discussion, Mr. Gandolfi advised on the Affordable Assistance Housing 

Program that is in the budget that will help address blighted properties and get them back on the 

market in proper condition.  He also mentioned again the Property Improvement Program to help 

owners address code violations. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi noted that overall, the City is quite healthy regarding money, with a lot of exciting 

projects coming up.  He also noted that ARPA has made a dramatic improvement to the GF, and 

will continue to do so through FY24.  Mr. Gandolfi also reviewed some rising costs that the City 

will be facing, such as inflation, wage pressures, and healthcare costs. 

 

There was discussion on a debt reduction plan looking into the future.  Mr. Gandolfi advised that 

it has been taken into consideration, and said they are capitalizing on lower interest rates now, 

with a CDA bond package planned for the first week of July. 

 

Mr. Tressler reviewed the decisions that need to be made – tax rate, no utility increases, non-

union COLA, capital purchases, new debt, etc., but said they definitely need the Constant Yield 

decision tonight. 

 
 Consensus from M&CC to keep the rate as is. 
 

There was discussion on sources of funding for bridges, and whether there was a commitment 

from CSX.  Mayor Morriss said there was for Cumberland Street, but they were still negotiating 

for Fayette Street.  Mr. Cohen advised that they have the draft agreement in place which will 

provide for the amount that CSX will contribute.  He added that it’s basically the same agreement 

as for the Cumberland Street Bridge. 

 

Mr. Gandolfi asked for any comments or questions.  He advised that on the follow-up work 

session on May 3rd they will do a condensed budget presentation, then the public hearing for the 

Constant Yield notice.  

 

II. PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA 4-19-22 

 
Mayor Morriss asked if there were any particular questions or comments about tonight’s regular 

session agenda.  Being none, M&CC moved to the next topic.  

 

III. FORMER ALLEGANY HIGH SCHOOL FAÇADE – REMOVAL & STORAGE 

 

Mr. Silka advised that most of the good stuff has been taken away from what’s left of the 

Allegany H.S. facade except for an archway, and provided a photo.  He said a decision is needed 

because there is no end-user, and said it would have to be reconstructed.  He added that the City 

would have to remove it and store it, as well as finding it a home, and said it appears that 

everything historical on that building has already been salvaged. 

 

There was discussion on the needed space to store it, and that the arch is not free-standing.  Ms. 

Davis-Rogers advised that saving facades has become a common practice, and said a grant could 

be obtained if there was a place to store it.  Mr. Silka advised that the pieces will fill 8-9 pallets, 

and said it’s a huge undertaking with no final destination.  He added that the site is actively being 

demolished, so it would have to be decided within the week.  Councilman George stated that if 

Allegany H.S. has determined that they don’t want it, he can’t see how the City would, and said 

he is a big proponent of preserving as much as possible.  Mr. Silka said it can be discussed next 



4 
 

week after the closed session moves into open work session, and said he will find out if the pieces 

are numbered, if there’s a map for reconstructing, etc. 

 

IV.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:35 p.m. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Marjorie A. Woodring 

 City Clerk 

 

 
 Minutes approved  



File Attachments for Item:

1. Ordinance No. 3922 (2nd and 3rd readings) - (ZTA #22-02) to amend the definition for the 

Residential-Office (R-O) Zoning District set forth in Section 25-101(b)(5) of the City Code and amend 

the Use Regulations Table set forth in Section 25-143 to include "Dwelling Units / Mixed Uses" as a 

permitted use in the R-O District









File Attachments for Item:

2. Ordinance No. 3923 (2nd and 3rd readings) - accepting the bid from Kevin and Anita Thacker for the

purchase of surplus properties at 7 and 9 Arch Street for the amount of $100.00 and authorizing execution

of a deed to effect the conveyance













File Attachments for Item:

3. Ordinance No. 3924 (2nd and 3rd readings) - accepting the bid from Kevin and Anita Thacker for the

purchase of surplus property at 105 Grand Avenue for the amount of $100.00 and authorizing execution 

of a deed to effect the conveyance













File Attachments for Item:

. Resolution No. 2022-06 (1 reading) - granting the Cumberland Outdoor Club a property tax credit for 

tax years 2022-2023 pursuant to Section 9-302(f) of the Tax Property Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland







File Attachments for Item:

. Ordinance 3925 (1st reading) - accepting the bid from Floyd F. Gregory for the purchase of surplus 

property located at 728 Baker Street for the amount of $500.00



 

ORDINANCE NO. 3925 

 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND 

ENTITLED “AN ORDINANCE TO ACCEPT BID FOR THE PURCHASE OF A PARCEL 

OF REAL PROPERTY IN THE CITY OF CUMBERLAND KNOWN AS 728 BAKER 

STREET AND TO AUTHORIZE THE CONVEYANCE OF THIS PROPERTY TO FLOYD 

F. GREGORY, JR., SUBJECT TO THE TERMS SET FORTH HEREINAFTER, AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF A DEED TO EFFECT THAT CONVEYANCE.”  

 WHEREAS, Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the fee 

simple owner of a certain parcel of real property located at 728 

Baker Street, Cumberland MD (the “Property”); 

 WHEREAS, the Property was declared surplus under the terms of 

Order No. 26,757, passed by the Mayor and City Council on February 

16, 2021; 

 WHEREAS, the Property was included in the solicitation for 

bids known as the “2021 Request for Bids Surplus Properties Round 

II” but was not bid upon in the original solicitation for bids; 

 WHEREAS, the City has since received a bid for the Property 

through the City’s “Ongoing Surplus Property Sale” and staff is 

recommending that the Mayor and City Council award the bid for the 

property known as 728 Baker Street to Floyd F. Gregory, 

Jr.(“Purchaser”)for the amount of $500.00 (Five Hundred Dollars); 

and 

 WHEREAS, subject to the hereinafter set forth terms, the Mayor 

and City Council deem the acceptance of this bid to be in the 

City’s best interests. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE 

 

SECTION 1:  BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND, that the Mayor and City Council accept the 



2 

 

bid of Floyd F. Gregory, Jr. for the sum of $500.00 (Five Hundred 

Dollars) subject to the following terms and conditions: 

 

A. Purchaser shall pay all recordation and transfer 

taxes required to record the deed effecting the 

conveyance of the Property successfully bid upon;  

B. Each purchaser shall pay the $60.00 deed 

recordation fee charged by the court. 

C. Purchaser will pay the City and County real estate 

taxes due from the date of the deed through the 

remainder of the tax year and will assume 

responsibility for the payment of those taxes 

thereafter.  The amount of pro-rated City and 

County taxes will be conveyed to the purchaser and 

shall be paid by cashier’s check, personal check, 

or money order.   

D. The Properties will be conveyed to the Purchaser by 

means of a quitclaim deed containing no warranties 

or representations of any kind, which is set forth 

in the Exhibit A attached hereto; 

E. The City will record the deed for the Purchaser, 

who in turn shall pay the City’s $100.00 deed 

recordation fee.   

F. The purchase price, the pro-rated City taxes, and 

the City’s $100.00 recording fee shall be paid by 

bank check, cashiers check or money order made 

payable to “City of Cumberland” and shall be hand-

delivered or mailed to:  

 

 



3 

 

 

City Clerk 

City Hall 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 

County taxes and County recording fees shall be 

paid by bank check, cashiers check or money order 

made payable to “Allegany County” and shall be 

hand-delivered or mailed to: 

 City Clerk 

 City Hall 

 57 N. Liberty Street 

 Cumberland, MD 21502 

 

A purchaser’s deed shall be released upon the 

payment of these sums and final recordation of the 

deed.  

G. Failure to remit the aforesaid payments to the City 

Clerk within sixty (60) days from the date of the 

passage of this Ordinance shall result in the 

rejection of a purchaser’s bid, unless said 

deadline is extended by the City Administrator or 

City Solicitor for good cause shown.  

 

 SECTION 2:  AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Mayor and 

City Clerk be and they are hereby authorized to execute and deliver 

deeds effecting the aforesaid conveyances subject to the aforesaid 

requirements;  

 

 

 

 

 



4 

 

 

 

SECTION 3:  AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance 

shall take effect from the date of its passage. 

Passed this _______ day of _______________, 2022. 

 

 

      ___________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk  



5 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
  



6 

 

NO TITLE SEARCH PERFORMED 

 

THIS DEED, made this _______ day of ________________, 2022, by and between 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND (the “City”), a Maryland municipal 

corporation, and FLOYD F. GREGORY, JR. (the “Grantee”).  

 WITNESSETH: 

 That for and in consideration of the sum of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) and for other 

good and valuable consideration, the receipt of all of which is hereby acknowledged, the City does 

hereby quitclaim to the Grantee, his personal representatives, heirs and assigns, all of the City’s 

right, title, interest and estate in and to the following-described piece or parcel of real estate lying 

and being in the City of Cumberland, Allegany County, Maryland, to wit:  

All that certain parcel of land situate in Election District 4, on the 
Southeasterly side of Baker Street in Cumberland, Allegany County, 
State of Maryland, being known and designated as (Magnetic 
Meridian as of Original Plat, Liber 104, Folio 748, stated in Vernier 
Readings and Horizontal Measurements being used), as metes and 
bounds property, as set forth in Deed Book 597 Page 808, recorded 
10/17/91, Allegany County Records.  
 
The improvements thereon being known as 728 Baker Street. 

 

IT BEING the same property that was conveyed from Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. to the City 

by deed dated April 9, 2018, and recorded among the Land Records of Allegany County, Maryland 

in Book 2050, Page 473.  

 

TOGETHER with the buildings and improvements thereon, and the rights, roads, ways, 

waters, privileges and appurtenances thereunto belonging or in anywise appertaining. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above-described property unto the Grantee, his personal 

representatives, heirs and assigns, in fee simple forever. 

WITNESS the hand and seal of the City the day and year first above written. 



7 

 

 

WITNESS: 

 

 

WITNESS/ATTEST: 

 

      MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  

OF CUMBERLAND 

 

______________________________   By:________________________________(SEAL) 

Marjorie A. Woodring, City Clerk         Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF MARYLAND, 

ALLEGANY COUNTY, TO WIT: 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on this _____ day of _____________, 2022, before me, the 

subscriber, a Notary Public of the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared Raymond M. 

Morriss, known to me or satisfactorily identified to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 

within instrument, the Mayor of Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, a municipal corporation 

of the State of Maryland, and acknowledged the foregoing to be the act and deed of the said Mayor 

and City Council of Cumberland; and at the same time made oath he is duly authorized by it to 

make this acknowledgment; and he further certified under the penalties of perjury that the actual 

consideration for the foregoing conveyance is $500.00; and he further made oath in due form of 

law that this transaction is not subject to the provisions of Section 10-912 of the Tax General 

Article of the Maryland Annotated Code as the grantor is a resident entity of the State of Maryland. 

 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal. 

 

      ________________________________ 

      NOTARY PUBLIC 
 

My Commission Expires:  _____________________

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the within and foregoing document was prepared by, or 

under the supervision of, the undersigned, a Maryland attorney, and that a title search was not 

performed in connection with its preparation. 

 

 

_________________________________ 

                                   MICHAEL SCOTT COHEN 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,051 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

with the Allegany County Health Department to receive grant funding in the amount of $14,241 for 

overtime for officers to conduct drug interdiction events with the goal of reducing the illicit supply of 

opioids in Cumberland and Allegany County



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,051                    DATE:     August 16, 2022_ 

 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Chief of Police be and is hereby authorized to enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding (M.O.U.) with the Allegany County Health 

Department on behalf of the City of Cumberland Police Department to receive grant 

funding for officer overtime in the amount of Fourteen Thousand, Two Hundred Forty-

one Dollars and No Cents ($14,241.00), and to partner with other local agencies, as 

appropriate, to conduct eleven (11) drug interdiction events by June 23, 2023, with the 

goal of reducing the illicit supply of opioids in Cumberland and Allegany County. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 
Grant Award No.  F511N, FY23 

 

 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date:   July 15, 2022 

Key Staff Contact:  Lt. Andrew Tichnell/Chief Chuck Ternent 

 

Item Title:    FY23 Health Department Opioid Operational Command Center Grant 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Authorize the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Allegany County 
Health Department to receive grant funding in the amount of $14,241 for officers to conduct drug 
interdiction events with a goal of reducing the illicit supply of opioids in Allegany County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amount of Award:  $14,241  

Budget number: 

Grant, bond, etc. reference:  Grant – reimbursable overtime 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,052 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

with the Allegany County Health Department to receive grant funding in the amount of $3,000 for 

officers to work medication pickup and takeback events in an attempt to prevent opioid misuse



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,052                     DATE:       August 16, 2022 

 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Chief of Police be and is hereby authorized to enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding (M.O.U.) with the Allegany County Health 

Department on behalf of the City of Cumberland Police Department to receive grant 

monies appropriated by the Allegany County Health Department in the amount of 

Three Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($3,000.00), to conduct mini take-back events 

within the community and provide medication pick-up services to home-bound 

individuals between July 11, 2022 and June 30, 2023, in an attempt to reduce opioid 

misuse. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 
Grant Award No.  (OMPP) F-870N  

 

 





Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date:   July 15, 2022 

Key Staff Contact:  Lt. Andrew Tichnell/Chief Chuck Ternent 

 

Item Title:    FY23 Health Department Opioid Misuse Prevention Program 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Authorize the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Allegany County 
Health Department to receive grant funding in the amount of $3,000 for officers to work mediation pick 
up and take back events in an attempt to prevent opioid misuse. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amount of Award:  $3,000 

Budget number: 

Grant, bond, etc. reference:  Grant – reimbursable overtime 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,053 - authorizing Special Taxing District residential exemptions for 45 N. Centre Street 

($681.87); 43-45 N. Liberty Street ($203.99); 50-52 N. Centre Street ($300.73); 107 S. Centre St. 

(668.21); and 47 Baltimore Street ($372.59)



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,053                    DATE:  August 16, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the following Residential Exemption from the Special Taxing District 

Levy for the 2022-2023 tax year be and is hereby granted: 

 

Property  / Owner Tax Year / Account No. Exemption 

Amt. 

45 N. Centre St./ Daniel Rhee 2022-2023/14-003207  $681.87 

43-45 N. Liberty St./Wm. Humbertson 2022-2023/14 005773  $203.99 

50-52 N. Centre St./Wm. Humbertson 2022-2023/14 005781  $300.73 

107 S. Centre St./JoAnn Circosta 2022-2023/04 031601 $668.21 

47 Baltimore St./Robert Chevez 2022-2023/04 023226  $372.59 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this exemption is hereby granted pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 235 of the City Charter. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



















File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,054 - authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY23 MCIN Grant in the amount of 

$256,878.00 to be used for overtime to support crime reduction patrols, targeted enforcement, intelligence

gathering, apprehension of violent criminals, and streamlining information sharing to address gang and 

drug trafficking



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,054                     DATE:    August 16, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT the Chief of Police be and is hereby authorized to accept an FY23 MCIN 

grant entitled “Allegany County MCIN Coalition Program” in the amount of Two 

Hundred Fifty-six Thousand, Eight Hundred Seventy-eight Dollars and No Cents 

($256,878.00) for the period 7/1/22 – 6/30/23 for personnel and overtime costs associated 

with the Cumberland Police Department’s focus on crime reduction patrols, targeted 

enforcement, intelligence gathering, apprehension of violent criminals, and streamlining 

information sharing to address gang and drug trafficking. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 
Grant:  MCIN-20230006 









Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date:   August 16, 2022 

Key Staff Contact:  Chief Chuck Ternent 

 

Item Title:    FY23 Maryland Criminal Intelligence Network (MCIN) grant 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Authorize the Chief of Police to accept the FY23 MCIN Grant in the amount of $256,878.00 to be used to 
support crime reduction patrols, targeted enforcement, intelligence gathering, apprehension of violent 
criminal, streamline information sharing to address gang and drug trafficking.  Grant funds will be 
obligated for contractual salaries, personnel services and overtime for increased manpower within allied 
agencies. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amount of Award:  $3,000 

Budget number: 

Grant, bond, etc. reference:  Grant – reimbursable overtime 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,055 - authorizing the Sole Source purchase of water meters and smartpoints from L/B Water 

Service in the amount not-to-exceed $170,000 for FY23



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     27,055                  DATE:     August 16, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, L/B Water Service, Inc., 550 S. High Street, Selinsgrove, PA, 17870 is hereby 

approved as the sole source vendor for the purchase of water meters and smartpoints for 

FY23; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that FY23 purchases from L/B Water Service, Inc. 

for water meters and smartpoints shall not exceed One Hundred Seventy Thousand 

Dollars and No Cents ($170,000.00). 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budget: 002.220.39300 Water Meters and Fittings 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,056 - authorizing the purchase of 2K feet of 6" C900 PVC water pipe from L/B Water 

Service, Inc. for the Avondale Ave. Water Line Project in the not-to-exceed amount of $33,280 for FY23



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,056                     DATE:     August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the purchase of 2,000 feet of 6-inch C900 PVC water pipe from L/B Water 

Service, Inc., Selinsgrove, PA, 17870 for the Avondale Avenue Water Line Replacement 

Project be and is hereby approved in the amount not-to-exceed Thirty-three Thousand, Two 

Hundred Eighty Dollars and No Cents ($33,280.00). 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Budget: 002.299.DS8 

 

 

 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,057 - accepting the proposal of Bennett, Brewer & Associates for the "Final Design of the 

South End Water Main Replacement Project" (2-22-W)  in the not-to-exceed lump sum amount of 

$221,664 to include additional coordination and field investigation, permitting, base mapping and 

finalization of plans and specs



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,057                  DATE:    August 16, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the proposal of Bennett, Brewer and Associates, LLC, 23 East Main Street, 

Frostburg, MD, 21532, to provide engineering services for the Final Design of the South 

End Water Main Replacement Project (2-22-W) be and is hereby accepted in the not-to-

exceed lump sum amount of Two Hundred Twenty-one Thousand, Six Hundred Sixty-

four Dollars and No Cents ($221,664.00) to include additional coordination and field 

investigation, permitting, base mapping, and finalization of plans and specifications to 

become bid-ready.  

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

Budget: 002-299.DS6 











Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 8/16/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, PE 

 

Item Title: 

Final Design and Bidding Services with Bennett, Brewer & Associates 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Final design of the South End Water Main Replacement project. Final design will include additional 
coordination, permitting, additional field investigation, base mapping, and finalization of plans and 
specifications to become bid ready. Design services cost $221,664.00. 

 

Amount of Award: $221,664.00 

Budget number: 002.299.DS6 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: City Funds 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,058 - authorizing the execution of a Quitclaim Bill of Sale to transfer ownership of the Fayette

Street Bridge from CSX to the City



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,058                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Quitclaim Bill of Sale from CSX Transportation, Inc. to the Mayor and 

City Council of Cumberland, which transfers ownership of the Fayette Street Bridge to 

the City, be and is hereby accepted.  

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 









Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 8/16/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, PE 

 

Item Title: 

Fayette Street Bridge Quitclaim Bill of Sale from CSX Transportation Inc. to the City (43-18-BR) 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

This order allows the City to execute a Quitclaim Bill of Sale to transfer ownership of the Fayette Street 
Bridge to the City from CSX Transportation. This order would place the bridge in the City’s possession so 
that the bridge project will become eligible for Federal Bridge Replacement funding through 
FHWA/MDOT SHA. 

Amount of Award:  N/A 

Budget number:  N/A 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: N/A 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,059 - authorizing the execution of a Construction Agreement with CSX outlining the terms 

for the removal and replacement of the Fayette St. Bridge (43-18-BR)



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 8/16/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, PE 

 

Item Title: 

Fayette Street Bridge Construction Agreement (43-18-BR) 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

An order authorizing execution of a Construction Agreement with CSX Transportation, Inc. outlining 
terms for the removal and replacement of the Fayette Street Bridge. 

Amount of Award:  N/A 

Budget number:  N/A 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: N/A 



BRIDGE RECONSTRUCTION 

FAYETTE STREET OVER CSXT  

CUMBERLAND, ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND 

CSXT MP BA 179.35  

CSXT OP NUMBER MD0451  

 

1 
 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 
 

 This Construction Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of ______________________, 2021, by 

and between CSX TRANSPORTATION, INC., a Virginia corporation with its principal place of business 

in Jacksonville, Florida (“CSXT”), and Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, a body 

corporate and political subdivision of the State of Maryland (“Agency”). 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

 

1. Agency has proposed to design and construct, or to cause to be designed and constructed, the removal 

and replacement of the Fayette Street bridge over CSXT at CSXT MP BA 179.35, DOT# 144690C, 

Cumberland, Allegany County, Maryland (the “Project”). 

 

2. Pursuant to that certain Quitclaim Bill of Sale dated _____________ and recorded at Book ___, Page 

__ of the Allegany County Land Records on ______________, Agency has assumed full ownership of 

the Fayette Street Bridge as required to proceed with the Project. 

 

3. Agency has obtained, or will obtain, all authorizations, permits and approvals from all local, state and 

federal agencies (including Agency), and their respective governing bodies and regulatory agencies, 

necessary to proceed with the Project and to appropriate all funds (other than funds to be contributed 

by CSXT, as herein described) necessary to construct the Project.   

 

4. Agency acknowledges that: (i) by entering into this Agreement, CSXT will provide services and 

accommodations to promote public interest in this Project, without profit or other economic inducement 

typical of other Agency contractors; and (ii) CSXT retains the paramount right to regulate all activities 

affecting its property and operations. 

 

5. It is the purpose of this Agreement to provide for the terms and conditions upon which the Project may 

proceed. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Explanatory Statement and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged by the parties, the parties 

agree as follows: 

 

1. Project Plans and Specifications 

 

1.1 Preparation and Approval.  Pursuant to Exhibit A of this Agreement, all plans, specifications, 

drawings and other documents necessary or appropriate to the design and construction of the 

Project shall be prepared, at Project Cost (which term is defined in section 4.1 of this Agreement), 

by Agency or its contractors (“Contractors”).  Project plans, specifications and drawings 

prepared by or on behalf of Agency shall be subject to the review and approval of CSXT.  Agency 

shall not start work on the Project until CSXT has approved the Plans, which approval may be 

reasonably withheld for any reason directly or indirectly related to safety or CSXT operations, 

property, or facilities.  In the event CSXT rejects the Plans, it shall diligently work with Agency 

to amend them under mutually acceptable terms and conditions.  Such plans, specifications and 

drawings, as prepared or approved by CSXT, are referred to as the “Plans”, and shall be 



2 
 

incorporated and deemed a part of this Agreement.  Plans submitted to and approved by CSXT 

as of the date of this Agreement are set forth in Exhibit B to this Agreement.    

 

1.2 Effect of CSXT Approval or Preparation of Plans. By its review, approval or preparation of Plans 

pursuant to this Agreement, CSXT signifies only that such Plans and improvements constructed 

in accordance with such Plans satisfy CSXT’s requirements. CSXT expressly disclaims all other 

representations and warranties in connection with the Plans, including, but not limited to, the 

integrity, suitability or fitness for the purposes of Agency or any other persons of the Plans or 

improvements constructed in accordance with the Plans.  Any amendments to the Plans shall be 

signed by Agency and City’s Engineering Representative (i.e., Agency’s City Engineer and 

CSXT’s Project Manager, or such other individuals whom may be designated as such by written 

notice of one party to the other). 

 

1.3 Compliance with Plans and Federal Standards.  The Project shall be constructed in accordance 

with the Plans.  It is understood that the Project herein contemplated is to be financed with the 

aid of funds appropriated by the Federal Government and expended under Federal regulations; 

that all plans, estimates of cost, specifications, awards of contracts, acceptance of work, and 

procedures in general are subject at all times to all Federal laws, rules, regulations, orders, and 

approvals applying to it, as a Federal-aid project. 

 

2. Allocation and Conduct of Work 

 

Work in connection with the Project shall be allocated and conducted as follows: 

 

 2.1 CSXT Work.  At Project Cost, CSXT shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services as set 

forth by Exhibit A to this Agreement.  Agency agrees that CSXT shall provide all services that 

CSXT deems necessary or appropriate (whether or not specified by Exhibit A) to preserve and 

maintain its property and operations, without impairment or exposure to liability of any kind and 

in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local regulations and CSXT’s contractual 

obligations, including, but not limited to, CSXT’s existing or proposed third party agreements 

and collective bargaining agreements.  Agency shall not be liable in whole or in part for any 

violations of CSXT’s aforesaid contractual obligations except to the extent it is responsible for 

such violations and only if it had advance knowledge of those obligations. 

 

2.2 Agency Work.  Agency shall perform, or cause to be performed, all work as set forth by Exhibit 

A, at Project Cost. 

 

2.3 Conduct of Work.  CSXT shall commence its work under this Agreement following: (i) delivery 

to CSXT of a notice to proceed from Agency; (ii) issuance of all permits, approvals and 

authorizations necessary or appropriate for such work; and (iii) delivery of proof of insurance 

acceptable to CSXT, as required by Section 9.  The initiation of any services by CSXT pursuant 

to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the issuance of purchase orders or bids for 

materials or services, shall constitute commencement of work for the purposes of this Section.  

The parties intend that all work by CSXT or on CSXT property shall conclude no later than 

December 31, 20242028, unless the parties mutually agree to extend such date. 

 

3. Special Provisions.  Agency shall observe and abide by, and shall require its Contractors to observe 

and abide by the terms, conditions and provisions set forth in Exhibit C to this Agreement (the “Special 

Provisions”).  To the extent that Agency performs Project work itself, Agency shall be deemed a 

Contractor for purposes of this Agreement.  Agency further agrees that, prior to the commencement 

of Project work by any third party Contractor, such Contractor shall execute and deliver to CSXT 



3 
 

Schedule I to this Agreement to acknowledge Contractor’s agreement to observe and abide by the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

4. Cost of Project and Reimbursement Procedures.   Agency has secured federal funding for the Project, 

which funding will cover 80% of the Project Costs, as defined below (the “Federal Share”).  CSXT 

hereby agrees to fund 20% of the estimated Project Costs (based off Agency’s OOM estimate of 

$2,8006,000, dated Aug. 5, 2019000), not to exceed $5601,200,000 (the “CSXT Share”), subject to 

this Section 4.  Additional Project Costs beyond the Federal Share and the CSXT Share shall be the 

responsibility of Agency. 

 

4.1 Project Costs.  The Project Costs will include all costs eligible for federal funding for the Project 

in accordance with the Federal Highway Administration’s Federal-Aid Policy Guide, 23 CFR 

Part 646, Subpart A and Subpart B and the Federal Highway Administration’s Bridge 

Replacement and Rehabilitation Program, 23 CFR Part 650, Subpart D, and all supplements and 

amendments thereto, which costs shall include design concept, preliminary engineering design 

and reviews, final design engineering, design drawings, construction drawings and specifications 

and reviews and revisions (including CSXT and Agency reviews and revisions), completion of 

all required environmental documentation, demolition of the old bridge structure, actual 

reconstruction of the bridge substructure, superstructure, decking, paving, and utilities, all 

necessary utility relocations, safety fencing, CSXT flagging or assigned construction safety 

inspectors, and actual costs for construction inspection (“Project Costs”).  To the extent Agency 

requires design features and/or construction means or methods or other extras which are in excess 

of applicable federal, state or local laws, ordinances, regulations, franchises, conduit agreements 

or minimum standards (such excess requirements being hereafter referred to as “Extras”), then 

Agency will pay 100% of the additional cost of such Extras.  Each month, Agency will provide 

CSXT with monthly invoices of Project Costs incurred. The Engineering Representatives will 

cooperate by reviewing, regularly conferring and attempting to resolve any differences regarding 

invoices, Project Costs and Extras, the Plans or any changes thereto. In the event a dispute arises 

regarding any of these matters, the Parties will promptly pursue the dispute resolution process set 

forth in Section 13.  

 

4.2 CSXT Payment Schedule.  CSXT will make payments for the CSXT Share of the Project Costs 

as follows:  

 

(a) After ninety (90) business days following the execution of the Agreement and Quitclaim 

Bill of Sale, Agency will invoice CSXT for one half of the CSXT Share of the Project 

Costs (i.e., $2801,200,000) upon commencement of the Project, and for the remaining one 

half of the CSXT Share of the Project Costs (i.e., $280,000) upon final completion of the 

project.). Within sixty (60) business days after Agency delivers its invoices for the CSXT 

Share of the Project Costs, CSXT will deliver payment of each invoice. Any and all 

disputes over the amount of the Agency’s invoices to CSXT will be subject to dispute 

resolution under Section 13. 

 

(b) Agency will submit its invoices to the following address (electronic invoices may be sent 

via email): 

 

Derek S. Mihaly, P.E. 

Project Manager II 

CSX Transportation 

2000 West Cabot Blvd, Suite 130 

Langhorne, PA 19047 



4 
 

derek_mihaly@csx.com  

 

 

4.3 Reconciliation; Audit.  Within ninety (90) days of the completion of the Project as determined 

by Agency’s City Engineer, Agency will prepare and deliver to CSXT a final accounting and 

reconciliation of Project Costs and payments. Based on the accounting and reconciliation, 

Agency will tender reimbursement to CSXT for any overpayment of the CSXT Share or CSXT 

will tender reimbursement to Agency for any underpayment of the CSXT Share. If CSXT or 

Agency disputes the accounting and/or reconciliation, the Engineering Representatives will 

promptly meet to resolve any such dispute and if the dispute is not resolved, the Parties will 

pursue the dispute resolution process set forth in Section 13.  Either party, at its sole cost, or both 

Parties jointly, may conduct an audit of the Project and both Parties will cooperate in such audit. 

Any written audit report will be provided to both Parties. 

 

4.3 Estimate.  Agency has estimated the total Project Costs as shown on Exhibit D (the “Estimate”, 

as amended or revised).  In the event Agency anticipates that actual Project Costs may exceed 

such Estimate, it shall provide CSXT with the revised Estimate of the Project Costs, for CSXT’s 

review and approval.  Any and all disputes over any revised Estimate will be subject to dispute 

resolution under Section 13. 

 

5. Appropriations  Agency represents to CSXT that: (i) Agency has appropriated funds sufficient to cover 

the Federal Share (i.e., 80% of the Project Costs) encompassed by the Estimate attached as Exhibit D; 

(ii) Agency shall use its best efforts to obtain appropriations necessary to cover any additional Project 

Costs (i.e., costs beyond the Federal Share and the CSXT Share) encompassed by subsequent Estimates 

provided by Agency; and (iii) Agency shall promptly notify CSXT in the event that Agency is unable 

to obtain such appropriations. 

 

6. Easements and Licenses 

 

6.1 Agency Obligation.  Agency shall acquire all necessary licenses, permits and easements required 

for the Project. 

 

6.2 Temporary Construction Licenses.  Insofar as it has the right to do so, CSXT hereby grants 

Agency a nonexclusive license to access and cross CSXT’s property, to the extent necessary for 

the construction of the Project (excluding ingress or egress over public grade crossings), along 

such routes and upon such terms as may be defined and imposed by CSXT and such temporary 

construction easements as may be designated on the Plans approved by CSXT.  

 

6.3 Permanent Easements.  Insofar as it has the right to do so, CSXT shall grant, without warranty to 

Agency, easements for the use and maintenance of the Project wholly or partly on CSXT property 

as shown on the Plans approved by CSXT, if any, on terms and conditions and at a price 

acceptable to the parties.  Upon request by CSXT, Agency shall furnish to CSXT descriptions 

and plat plans for the easements. To the extent possible, the parties shall follow the procedures 

set forth in Section II of the Federal Highway Bridge Program Guidelines for Local Government, 

as amended from time-to-time so that these costs are included within the Project Costs eligible 

for federal funding. 

 

7. Permits  At Project Cost, Agency shall procure all permits and approvals required by any federal, state, 

or local governments or governmental agencies for the construction, maintenance and use of the Project, 

copies of which shall be provided to CSXT. 

 



5 
 

  



6 
 

8. Termination 

 

8.1 By Agency.  For any reason, Agency may, as its sole remedy, terminate this Agreement by 

delivery of notice to CSXT.  Agency shall not be entitled to otherwise pursue claims for 

consequential, direct, indirect or incidental damages or lost profits as a consequence of CSXT’s 

default or termination of this Agreement or Work on the Project by either party. 

 

8.2 By CSXT.  In addition to the other rights and remedies available to CSXT under this Agreement, 

CSXT may terminate this Agreement by delivery of notice to Agency in the event Agency or its 

Contractors fail to observe the terms or conditions of this Agreement and such failure continues 

more than ten (10) business days following delivery of notice of such failure by CSXT to Agency, 

provided Agency fails to commence efforts to remedy such failure within the aforesaid time 

frame.  So long as Agency commences such efforts within the aforesaid time frame, it shall have 

thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the delivery of the notice of failure to remedy such 

failures 

 

8.3 Consequences of Termination.  If the Agreement is terminated by either party pursuant to this 

Section or any other provision of this Agreement, the parties understand that it may be impractical 

for them to immediately stop the Work.  Accordingly, they agree that, in such instance a party 

may continue to perform Work until it has reached a point where it may reasonably and safely 

suspend the Work.  Agency shall reimburse CSXT pursuant to this Agreement for the Work 

performed, plus all costs reasonably incurred by CSXT to discontinue the Work and protect the 

Work upon full suspension of the same, the cost of returning CSXT’s property to its former 

condition, and all other costs of CSXT incurred as a result of the Project up to the time of full 

suspension of the Work.  Termination of this Agreement or Work on the Project, for any reason, 

shall not diminish or reduce Agency’s obligation to pay CSXT for the reimbursable expenses 

identified in this paragraph which are incurred in accordance with this Agreement.  In the event 

of the termination of this Agreement or the Work for any reason, CSXT’s only remaining 

obligation to Agency shall be to refund to Agency payments made to CSXT in excess of the said 

reimbursable expenses in accordance with Section 4. 

 

9. Insurance  In addition to the insurance that Agency requires of its Contractor, Agency shall acquire or 

require its Contractor to purchase and maintain insurance in compliance with CSXT’s insurance 

requirements attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F.  Neither Agency nor Contractor shall commence 

work on the Project until such policy or policies have been submitted to and approved by CSXT’s Risk 

Management Department. 

 

10. Ownership and Maintenance 

 

10.1 By Agency.  Agency shall own and, without cost to CSXT, maintain, repair, replace and renew, 

or cause same to be done, in good condition and repair to CSXT’s satisfaction, the highway 

overpass structure, the roadway surfacing, the roadway slopes, the retaining walls, and the 

highway drainage facilities.  In the event that Agency fails to properly maintain such structures 

and improvements and such failure, in the opinion of CSXT, jeopardizes the safe and efficient 

operation of its property, CSXT shall be entitled to remedy such failure and recover from Agency 

the costs incurred by CSXT in doing so. 

 

10.2 Alterations.  Agency shall not undertake any alteration, modification or expansion of the Project, 

without the prior approval of CSXT, which may be reasonably withheld, and the execution of 

such agreements as CSXT may require. 

 



7 
 

11. Indemnification 

 

11.1 Generally.  To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, Agency’s Contractors shall 

indemnify, defend, and hold CSXT and its affiliates harmless from and against all claims, 

demands, payments, suits, actions, judgments, settlements, and damages of every nature, degree, 

and kind (including direct, indirect, consequential, incidental, and punitive damages), for any 

injury to or death to any person(s) (including, but not limited to the employees of CSXT, its 

affiliates, Agency or its Contractors), for the loss of or damage to any property whatsoever 

(including but not limited to property owned by or in the care, custody, or control of CSXT, its 

affiliates, Agency or its Contractors, and environmental damages and any related remediation 

brought or recovered against CSXT and its affiliates), arising directly or indirectly from the 

negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful misconduct of the Contractors, Agency, and 

their respective agents, employees, invitees, contractors, or its contractors’ agents, employees or 

invitees in the performance of work in connection with the Project or activities incidental thereto, 

or from their presence on or about CSXT’s property.  The foregoing indemnification obligation 

shall not be limited to the insurance coverage required by this Agreement, except to the extent 

required by law or otherwise expressly provided by this Agreement. 

 

11.2 Compliance with Laws.  Agency shall comply, and shall require its Contractors to comply, with 

any federal, state, or local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations applicable to 

its construction and maintenance of the Project.  Agency’s Contractors shall indemnify, defend, 

and hold CSXT and its affiliates harmless with respect to any fines, penalties, liabilities, or other 

consequences arising from breaches of this Section. 

 

11.3 “CSXT Affiliates”.  For the purpose of this Section 11, CSXT’s affiliates include CSX 

Corporation and all entities, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by or under common 

control of CSXT or CSX Corporation and their respective officers, directors, employees and 

agents.  

 

11.4 Notice of Incidents.  Agency and its Contractor shall notify CSXT promptly of any loss, damage, 

injury or death arising out of or in connection with the Project work. 

 

11.5 Survival.  The provisions of this Section 11 shall survive the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement. 

 

12. Independent Contractor.  The parties agree that neither Agency nor its Contractors shall be deemed 

either agents or independent contractors of CSXT and that neither CSXT nor its contractors shall be 

deemed either agents or independent contractors of Agency.  Except as otherwise provided by this 

Agreement, CSXT shall exercise no control whatsoever over the employment, discharge, compensation 

of, or services rendered by Agency or Agency’s Contractors, or the construction practices, procedures, 

and professional judgment employed by Agency or its Contractor to complete the Project.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 12 shall in no way affect the absolute authority of CSXT 

to prohibit Agency or its Contractors or anyone from entering CSXT’s property, or to require the 

removal of any person from its property, if it determines, in its sole but reasonable discretion, that such 

person is not acting in a safe manner or that actual or potential hazards in, on or about the Project exist.  

 

13. Dispute Resolution.  In the event any dispute or controversy arises between the Parties regarding any 

of the provisions of this Agreement, including but not limited to the meaning or interpretation of its 



8 
 

provisions or its operation, as well as the duties and responsibilities of the Parties, it is agreed that the 

Parties will proceed in accordance with the following dispute resolution process:  

 

Level One 

The Engineering Representative of the party contending a dispute exists shall provide written notice 

of the dispute to the other party’s Engineering Representative. The engineers or other 

representatives of the Parties directly dealing with the issue in dispute will meet in a good faith 

attempt to achieve resolution. 

 

Level Two 

If the dispute is not resolved at Level One within 20 calendar days from the date of the last Level 

One meeting, the Level One engineers or other representatives will prepare and exchange written 

documents with supporting materials setting forth each side’s position and supporting reasons. 

Within 15 calendar days from the date of exchange, the direct supervisors of the respective Level 

One engineers or other representatives will meet in a good faith effort to achieve resolution. 

 

Level Three 

If the dispute is not resolved at Level Two within 20 calendar days from the date of the last Level 

Two meeting, Agency’s City Engineer and the CSXT Chief Engineer – Design & Construction will 

promptly meet in a good faith effort to achieve resolution. Upon 7 calendar days written notice, 

either party may elect to have a neutral mediator experienced in construction/engineering matters 

appointed to facilitate settlement in connection with the meeting. If the Parties cannot agree on a 

mediator within 7 calendar days of the date of the election, a mediator will be selected under the 

American Arbitration Association Mediation Rules. The cost of the mediation will be divided 

evenly. 

 

Level Four 

If the dispute is not resolved at Level Three after 30 calendar days from the date of the last Level 

Three meeting, either party upon 15 calendar days written notice may initiate final and binding 

arbitration of the dispute under the Rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitration 

will take place in Cumberland before a single arbitrator and the costs of the arbitration will be 

shared equally.  If the dispute is not resolved at Level Three and arbitration is not initiated, the 

dispute shall be deemed to have been resolved in the favor of the party who did not initiate the 

dispute resolution process. 

 

All time frames provided for in this dispute resolution procedure, if not extended by written 

agreement of the Parties, shall be deemed to be the latest dates for compliance with the procedure; 

however, the Parties shall endeavor to expedite the process to the extent they are reasonably able 

to do so.   

 

13. “Entire Agreement.”  This Agreement embodies the entire understanding of the parties, may not be 

waived or modified except in a writing signed by authorized representatives of both parties, and 

supersedes all prior or contemporaneous written or oral understandings, agreements or negotiations 

regarding its subject matter.  In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Exhibits, 

the more specific terms of the Exhibits shall be deemed controlling. 

 

14. Waiver.  If either party fails to enforce its respective rights under this Agreement, or fails to insist upon 

the performance of the other party’s obligations hereunder, such failure shall not be construed as a 

permanent waiver of any rights or obligations in this Agreement. 

 



9 
 

15. Assignment.  CSXT may assign this Agreement and all rights and obligations herein to a successor in 

interest, parent company, affiliate, or future affiliate.  Upon assignment of this Agreement by CSXT 

and the assumption of CSXT’s assignee of CSXT’s obligations under this Agreement, CSXT shall have 

no further obligation under this Agreement.  Agency shall not assign its rights or obligations under this 

Agreement without CSXT’s prior consent, which consent may be withheld for any reason. 

 

16. Notices.  All notices, consents and approvals required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing 

and shall be deemed delivered upon personal delivery, upon the expiration of three (3) days following 

mailing by first class U.S. mail, or upon the next business day following mailing by a nationally 

recognized overnight carrier, to the parties at the addresses set forth below, or such other addresses as 

either party may designate by delivery of prior notice to the other party: 

 

If to CSXT:   CSX Transportation, Inc. 

  500 Water Street, J-301 

   Jacksonville, Florida  32202 

  Attention:  Director Project Management – Public Projects  

           

If to Agency:   Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 

    57 N. Liberty Street 

    Cumberland, MD 21502 

    Attention: City Engineer 

 

17. Severability  The parties agree that if any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, 

unenforceable or in conflict with any applicable federal, state, or local law or regulation, such part, term 

or provision shall be severable, with the remainder of the Agreement remaining valid and enforceable.  

However, the Parties agree to negotiate in good faith to substitute the severed part, term or provision 

with alternative language which is not subject to being severed which effects the intent of the parties 

and is consistent with the terms of this Agreement. 

 

18. Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Maryland, exclusive of 

its choice of law rules.  The parties further agree that the venue of all legal and equitable proceedings 

related to disputes under this Agreement shall be situated in Allegany County, Maryland, and the parties 

agree to submit to the personal jurisdiction of any State or Federal court situated in Allegany County, 

Maryland. 

 

19. Timeliness.  Time is of the essence with respect to the terms of this Agreement. 

 

20. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same document.  Signatures 

transmitted electronically in PDF format shall be effective. 

 

 

[Signatures appear on following page] 



10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate, each 

by its duly authorized officers, as of the date of this Agreement. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND 
 

By:       

Name: Raymond M. Morriss    

Title: Mayor      

 

 

CSX TRANSPORTATION, INC. 

 

By:       

Name: Edward D. Sparks II, PE    

       Title: Chief Engineer     

Bridges, Design & Construction   

 

 

 



A-1 

 

EXHIBIT A 

ALLOCATION OF WORK 

 

 

Subject to Section 2, work to be performed in connection with the Project is allocated as follows: 

 

A. Agency shall let by contract to its Contractors: 

 

1. Design and perform all work necessary to remove existing bridge and build a 

new bridge over CSX Transportation, Inc. at Fayette Street in Cumberland, 

Maryland, using the proposed concrete superstructure and substructure 

alternative (Alternative 2 in Wilson T. Ballard’s April 5, 2019 Design Study 

for Bridge No. A-C-08 on Fayette Street), with a 21’9” vertical clearance to 

support modern railroad operations.  

 

B. CSXT shall perform or cause to be performed: 

 

1. Preliminary engineering services. 

2. Changes in communication and signal lines. 

3. Flagging services and other protective services and devices as may be 

necessary. 

4. Construction engineering and inspection to protect the interests of CSXT. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

 

 

PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

Plans, Specifications and Drawings: 

 

 As of the date of this Agreement, the following plans, specifications and drawings have been 

submitted by Agency to CSXT for its review and approval: 

 

 [IDENTIFY PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS BY DATE, PREPARER, TITLE, PROJECT 

NUMBER, ETC.] 

 

 

 

 

SHEET DESCRIPTION PREPARER DATE   

1 of  

 

  

 



C-1 
 

EXHIBIT C 

 

CSXT SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 

 

DEFINITIONS: 

 

As used in these Special Provisions, all capitalized terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them by the 

Agreement, and the following terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them below: 

 

“CSXT” shall mean CSX Transportation, Inc., its successors and assigns. 

 

“CSXT Representative” shall mean the authorized representative of CSX Transportation, Inc. 

 

“Agreement” shall mean the Agreement between CSXT and Agency dated as of [INSERT DATE OF 

AGREEMENT], as amended from time to time. 

 

“Agency” shall mean the  Mayor and City Council of Cumberland. 

 

“Agency Representative” shall mean the authorized representative of Agency, presently Robert L. Smith, 

City Engineer, and/or any others appointed as such, provided written notice of the appointment is provided 

to CSXT and/or the CSXT Representative. 

 

“Contractor” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term by the Agreement. 

 

“Work” shall mean the Project as described in the Agreement. 

 

I. AUTHORITY OF CSXT ENGINEER 

 

The CSXT Representative shall have final authority in all matters affecting the safe maintenance of CSXT 

operations and CSXT property, and his or her approval shall be obtained by the Agency or its Contractor 

for methods of construction to avoid interference with CSXT operations and CSXT property and all other 

matters contemplated by the Agreement and these Special Provisions. 

 

II. INTERFERENCE WITH CSXT OPERATIONS 

A. Agency or its Contractor shall arrange and conduct its work so that there will be no 

interference with CSXT operations, including train, signal, telephone and telegraphic 

services, or damage to CSXT’s property, or to poles, wires, and other facilities of tenants 

on CSXT’s Property or right-of-way.  Agency or its Contractor shall store materials so as 

to prevent trespassers from causing damage to trains, or CSXT Property. Whenever Work 

is likely to affect the operations or safety of trains, the method of doing such Work shall 

first be submitted to the CSXT Representative for approval, but such approval shall not 

relieve Agency or its Contractor from liability in connection with such Work. 

 

B. If conditions arising from or in connection with the Project require that immediate and 

unusual provisions be made to protect train operation or CSXT’s property, Agency or its 

Contractor shall make such provision.  If the CSXT Representative determines that such 

provision is insufficient, CSXT may, at the expense of Agency or its Contractor, require or 

provide such provision as may be deemed necessary, or cause the Work to cease 

immediately. 



C-2 
 

 

 

III. NOTICE OF STARTING WORK.  Agency or its Contractor shall not commence any work on 

CSXT Property or rights-of-way until it has complied with the following conditions: 

 

A. Notify CSXT in writing of the date that it intends to commence Work on the Project. Such 

notice must be received by CSXT at least ten business days in advance of the date Agency 

or its Contractor proposes to begin Work on CSXT property.  The notice must refer to this 

Agreement by date.  If flagging service is required, such notice shall be submitted at least 

thirty (30) business days in advance of the date scheduled to commence the Work.  

 

B. Obtain authorization from the CSXT Representative to begin Work on CSXT property, 

such authorization to include an outline of specific conditions with which it must comply.  

 

C. Obtain from CSXT the names, addresses and telephone numbers of CSXT’s personnel who 

must receive notice under provisions in the Agreement.  Where more than one individual 

is designated, the area of responsibility of each shall be specified. 

 

IV. WORK FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE CONTRACTOR 

A. No temporary or permanent changes to wire lines or other facilities (other than third party 

fiber optic cable transmission systems) on CSXT property that are considered necessary to 

the Work are anticipated or shown on the Plans.  If any such changes are, or become, 

necessary in the opinion of CSXT or Agency, such changes will be covered by appropriate 

revisions to the Plans and by preparation of a force account estimate.  Such force account 

estimate may be initiated by either CSXT or Agency, but must be approved by both CSXT 

and Agency.  Agency or Contractor shall be responsible for arranging for the relocation of 

the third party fiber optic cable transmission systems, at no cost or expense to CSXT. 

 

B. Should Agency or Contractor desire any changes in addition to the above, then it shall 

make separate arrangements with CSXT for such changes to be accomplished at the 

Agency or Contractor’s expense. 

 

V. HAUL ACROSS RAILROAD 

 

A. If Agency or Contractor desires access across CSXT property or tracks at other than an 

existing and open public road crossing in or incident to construction of the Project, the 

Agency or Contractor must first obtain the permission of CSXT and shall execute a license 

agreement or right of entry satisfactory to CSXT, wherein Agency or Contractor agrees to 

bear all costs and liabilities related to such access.  In the event CSXT denies permission 

as to a particular location, it shall work cooperatively with Agency and Contractor 

to accommodate their needs for access, provided those needs are reasonably 

capable of being met. 
 

B. Agency and Contractor shall not cross CSXT’s property and tracks with vehicles or 

equipment of any kind or character, except at such crossing or crossings as may be 

permitted pursuant to this section. 

 



C-3 
 

VI. COOPERATION AND DELAYS 

A. Agency or Contractor shall arrange a schedule with CSXT for accomplishing stage 

construction involving work by CSXT.  In arranging its schedule, Agency or Contractor 

shall ascertain, from CSXT, the lead time required for assembling crews and materials and 

shall make due allowance therefor.  CSXT agrees to work cooperatively with Agency and 

Contractor in regard to the foregoing. 

 

B. Agency or Contractor may not charge any costs or submit any claims against CSXT for 

hindrance or delay caused by railroad traffic; work done by CSXT or other delay incident 

to or necessary for safe maintenance of railroad traffic; or for any delays due to compliance 

with these Special Provisions.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, CSXT shall work 

cooperatively with Agency and Contractor and shall endeavor to minimize such delays. 

 

C. Agency, Contractor and CSXT shall cooperate with others participating in the construction 

of the Project to the end that all work may be carried on to the best advantage. 

 

D. Agency and Contractor understand and agree that CSXT does not assume any 

responsibility for work performed by others in connection the Project. Agency and 

Contractor further understand and agree that they shall have no claim whatsoever against 

CSXT for any inconvenience, delay or additional cost incurred by Agency or Contractor 

on account of operations by others. 

 

VII. STORAGE OF MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

Agency and Contractor shall not store their materials or equipment on CSXT’s property or where 

they may potentially interfere with CSXT’s operations, unless Agency or Contractor has received 

CSXT Representative’s prior written permission.  Agency and Contractor understand and agree 

that CSXT will not be liable for any damage to such materials and equipment from any cause and 

that CSXT may move, or require Agency or Contractor to move, such material and equipment at 

Agency’s or Contractor’s sole expense.  To minimize the possibility of damage to the railroad 

tracks resulting from the unauthorized use of equipment, all grading or other construction 

equipment that is left parked near the tracks unattended by watchmen shall be immobilized to the 

extent feasible so that it cannot be moved by unauthorized persons.   

 

VIII. CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES 

A. General 

 

1. Construction work on CSXT property shall be subject to CSXT’s inspection and 

approval. 

2. Construction work on CSXT property shall be in accord with CSXT’s written 

outline of specific conditions and with these Special Provisions. 

3. Contractor shall observe the terms and rules of the CSXT Safe Way manual, which 

Agency and Contractor shall be required to obtain from CSXT, and in accord with 

any other instructions furnished by CSXT or CSXT’s Representative.  

 

B. Blasting 

 

1. Agency or Contractor shall obtain CSXT Representative’s and Agency 

Representative’s prior written approval for use of explosives on or adjacent to 



C-4 
 

CSXT property.  If permission for use of explosives is granted, Agency or 

Contractor must comply with the following: 

 

a. Blasting shall be done with light charges under the direct supervision of a 

responsible officer or employee of Agency or Contractor. 

 

b. Electric detonating fuses shall not be used because of the possibility of 

premature explosions resulting from operation of two-way train radios. 

 

c. No blasting shall be done without the presence of an authorized 

representative of CSXT.  At least 10 days’ advance notice to CSXT 

Representative is required to arrange for the presence of an authorized 

CSXT representative and any flagging that CSXT may require. 

 

d. Agency or Contractor must have at the Project site adequate equipment, 

labor and materials, and allow sufficient time, to (i) clean up (at Agency’s 

expense) debris resulting from the blasting without any delay to trains; and 

(ii) correct (at Agency’s expense) any track misalignment or other damage 

to CSXT’s property resulting from the blasting, as directed by CSXT 

Representative, without delay to trains. If Agency’s or Contractor’s 

actions result in delay of any trains, including Amtrak passenger trains, 

Agency shall bear the entire cost thereof. 

 

e. Agency and Contractor shall not store explosives on CSXT property. 

 

2. CSXT Representative will: 

 

a. Determine the approximate location of trains and advise Agency or 

Contractor of the approximate amount of time available for the blasting 

operation and clean-up. 

 

b. Have the authority to order discontinuance of blasting if, in his or her 

opinion, blasting is too hazardous or is not in accord with these Special 

Provisions. 

 

IX. MAINTENANCE OF DITCHES ADJACENT TO CSXT TRACKS 

 

Agency or Contractor shall maintain all ditches and drainage structures free of silt or other 

obstructions that may result from their operations. Agency or Contractor shall provide erosion 

control measures during construction and use methods that accord with applicable state standard 

specifications for road and bridge construction, including either  (1) silt fence; (2) hay or straw 

barrier; (3) berm or temporary ditches; (4) sediment basin; (5) aggregate checks; and (6) channel 

lining.  All such maintenance and repair of damages due to Agency’s or Contractor’s operations 

shall be performed at Agency’s expense. 

 

X. FLAGGING / INSPECTION SERVICE 

 

A. CSXT has sole authority to determine the need for flagging required to protect its 

operations and property.  In general, flagging protection will be required whenever Agency 

or Contractor or their equipment are, or are likely to be, working within fifty (50) feet of 

live track or other track clearances specified by CSXT, or over tracks. 



C-5 
 

 

B. Agency shall reimburse CSXT directly for all costs of flagging that is required on account 

of construction within CSXT property shown in the Plans, or that is covered by an approved 

plan revision, supplemental agreement or change order. Thereafter, Agency will invoice 

CSXT for the CSXT Share. 

 

C. Agency or Contractor shall give a minimum of 10 days’ advance notice to CSXT 

Representative for anticipated need for flagging service.  No work shall be undertaken until 

the flag person(s) is/are at the job site.  If it is necessary for CSXT to advertise a flagging 

job for bid, it may take up to 90-days to obtain this service, and CSXT shall not be liable 

for the cost of delays attributable to obtaining such service. 

 

D. CSXT shall have the right to assign an individual to the site of the Project to perform 

inspection service whenever, in the opinion of CSXT Representative, such inspection may 

be necessary. Agency shall reimburse CSXT for the costs incurred by CSXT for such 

inspection service.  Thereafter, Agency will invoice CSXT for the CSXT Share. Inspection 

service shall not relieve Agency or Contractor from liability for its Work. 

 

E. CSXT shall render invoices for, and Agency shall pay for, the actual pay rate of the 

flagpersons and inspectors used, plus standard additives, whether that amount is above or 

below the rate provided in the Estimate. If the rate of pay that is to be used for inspector or 

flagging service is changed before the work is started or during the progress of the work, 

whether by law or agreement between CSXT and its employees, or if the tax rates on labor 

are changed, bills will be rendered by CSXT and paid by Agency using the new rates.  

Agency and Contractor shall perform their operations that require flagging protection or 

inspection service in such a manner and sequence that the cost of such will be as 

economical as possible. 

 

XI.  UTILITY FACILITIES ON CSXT PROPERTY 

 

Agency shall arrange, upon approval from CSXT, to have any utility facilities on or over CSXT 

Property changed as may be necessary to provide clearances for the proposed trackage.   

 

XII. CLEAN-UP 

 

Agency or Contractor, upon completion of the Project, shall remove from CSXT’s Property any 

temporary grade crossings, any temporary erosion control measures used to control drainage, all 

machinery, equipment, surplus materials, falsework, rubbish, or temporary buildings belonging to 

Agency or Contractor.  Agency or Contractor, upon completion of the Project, shall leave CSXT 

Property in neat condition, reasonably satisfactory to CSXT Representative. 

 

XIII. FAILURE TO COMPLY 

If Agency or Contractor violate or fail to comply with any of the requirements of these Special 

Provisions, (a) CSXT may require Agency and/or Contractor to vacate CSXT Property; and (b) 

CSXT may withhold monies due Agency and/or Contractor; (c) CSXT may require Agency to 

withhold monies due Contractor; and (d) CSXT may cure such failure and the Agency shall 

reimburse CSXT for the cost of curing such failure. 

 

 

 



E-1 

EXHIBIT D 
 

INITIAL ESTIMATE 

ATTACHED 

 



F-1 

EXHIBIT F 

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

I. Insurance Policies: 

 

Agency and Contractor, if and to the extent that either is performing construction work on or about 

CSXT’s property, shall procure and maintain the following insurance policies, it being noted that the 

Agency is not expected to be performing any such work and that it shall not be required to procure its own 

policies unless it engages in such work: 

 

1. Commercial General Liability coverage at their sole cost and expense with limits of not less 

than $5,000,000 in combined single limits for bodily injury and/or property damage per 

occurrence, and such policies shall name CSXT as an additional insured. The policy shall 

include endorsement ISO CG 24 17 evidencing that coverage is provided for work within 50 

feet of a railroad. If such endorsement is not included, railroad protective liability insurance 

must be provided as described in item 4 below. 

 

2. Statutory Worker’s Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance with limits of not less 

than $1,000,000, which insurance must contain a waiver of subrogation against CSXT and its 

affiliates (if permitted by state law). 

 

3. Commercial automobile liability insurance with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined 

single limit for bodily injury and/or property damage per occurrence, and such policies shall 

name CSXT as an additional insured. The policy shall include endorsement ISO CA 20 70 

evidencing that coverage is provided for work within 50 feet of a railroad. If such endorsement 

is not included, railroad protective liability insurance must be provided as described in item 4 

below.  

 

4. Railroad protective liability insurance with limits of not less than $5,000,000 combined single 

limit for bodily injury and/or property damage per occurrence and an aggregate annual limit of 

$10,000,000, which insurance shall satisfy the following additional requirements: 

 

a. The Railroad Protective Insurance Policy must be on the ISO/RIMA Form of Railroad 

Protective Insurance - Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 35.  

 

b. CSX Transportation must be the named insured on the Railroad Protective Insurance 

Policy. 

 

c. Name and Address of Contractor and Agency must appear on the Declarations page.  
 

d. Description of operations must appear on the Declarations page and must match the Project 

description. 

 

e. Authorized endorsements must include the Pollution Exclusion Amendment - CG 28 31, 

unless using form CG 00 35 version 96 and later. 

 

f. Authorized endorsements may include: 

 

  (i). Broad Form Nuclear Exclusion - IL 00 21 

  (ii) 30-day Advance Notice of Non-renewal or cancellation 



F-2 

  (iii) Required State Cancellation Endorsement 

  (iv) Quick Reference or Index - CL/IL 240 

 

g. Authorized endorsements may not include: 

  

 (i) A Pollution Exclusion Endorsement except CG 28 31 

(ii) A Punitive or Exemplary Damages Exclusion 

(iii) A “Common Policy Conditions” Endorsement 

(iv) Any endorsement that is not named in Section 4 (e) or (f) above. 

(v) Policies that contain any type of deductible 

 

5. All insurance companies must be A. M. Best rated A- and Class VII or better. 

 

6. The CSX OP number or CSX contract number, as applicable, must appear on each 

Declarations page and/or certificates of insurance. 

 
7. Such additional or different insurance as CSXT may require. 

 

II.    Additional Terms 

 

1. Contractor must submit the original Railroad Protective Liability policy, Certificates of 

Insurance and all notices and correspondence regarding the insurance policies to: 

 

Insurance Department 

CSX Transportation, Inc. 

500 Water Street, C-907 

Jacksonville, FL 32202 

 

OR 

 

insurancedocuments@csx.com 
 

2. Neither Agency nor Contractor may begin work on the Project until it has received CSXT’s written 

approval of the required insurance. 

 

3. Agency shall be responsible for review and monitoring of Contractor’s compliance with the 

requirements of this Exhibit F throughout the term of the Agreement.  In the same regard, Contractor 

shall be responsible for insurance review and monitoring of subcontractors.  Upon request, evidence of 

Contractor’s insurance shall be provided to CSXT. 

 

 



 

I-1 

SCHEDULE I 

 

CONTRACTOR’S ACCEPTANCE 

 

 To and for the benefit of CSX Transportation, Inc. (“CSXT”) and to induce CSXT to permit 

Contractor on or about CSXT’s property for the purposes of performing work in accordance with the 

Agreement dated _______________________, 201__, between The Mayor and City Council of 

Cumberland, Maryland and CSXT, Contractor hereby agrees to abide by and perform all applicable terms 

of the Agreement, including, but not limited to Exhibits C and F to the Agreement, and Sections 3, 9 and 

11 of the Agreement.   

 

 

      Contractor:  ___________________________ 

       

       By:  ___________________________ 

       Name:  _________________________ 

       Title:  __________________________ 

       Date:  __________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,059                      DATE:   August 16, 2022_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute a Construction Agreement by 

and between CSX Transportation, Inc. and the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland outlining 

terms for the removal and replacement of the Fayette Street Bridge (43-18-BR). 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,060 - authorizing the execution of Change Order No. 2 with Carl Belt, Inc. for the "Decatur 

Street 24" Crosstown Water Main Replacement Project (31-17-W)" adding 51 calendar days for final 

completion, setting the final completion date at September 30, 2022, and increasing the contract price to 

the not-to-exceed amount of $79,966.60 due to additional materials and needed work.  This brings the 

new total contract price to $3,192,852.55.



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,060                      DATE:   August 16, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 2 to the original contract with Carl Belt, Inc., 11521 Milnor Avenue, 

Cumberland, MD 21502, for the “Decatur Street 24” Crosstown Water Main Replacement 

Project” (31-17-W) to add 51 (fifty-one) calendar days to the completion date, setting the 

final completion date at September 30, 2022, and increasing the contract price in the not-

to-exceed amount of Seventy-nine Thousand, Nine Hundred Sixty-six Dollars and Sixty 

Cents ($79,966.60), bringing the new total contract price to Three Million, One Hundred 

Ninety-two Thousand, Eight Hundred Fifty-two Dollars and Fifty-five Cents 

($3,192,852.55) 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 
 

 

 

Budget: 002.299E.63000 

ARC and MDE Grant Funding, DWSRF Loans 

 





Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 8/16/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, PE 

 

Item Title: 

Change Order No. 2 Decatur Street 24” Crosstown Water Main Replacement, City Project 31-17-W 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Add 51 calendar days for final completion for the current project with Carl Belt, Inc. This sets the final 
completion date at September 30, 2022. In addition, increase the contract price in the amount of 
$79,966.60 due to additional materials and work performed. The total contract price will now be 
$3,192,852.55. 

Amount of Award: $79,966.60 

Budget number: 002.299EE.63000 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: ARC & MDE Grant Funds, DWSRF Loans 



Change Order 1 was a No-Cost Time Extension



Change Order 1 was a No-Cost Time Extension



Altamont Terrace

Base/Alt Bid # Item QTY Unit Labor Material Total Cost Comment

Alt 2 211 10" DIP Main 50 LF 117.40$        5,870.00$         Belt provide labor & material

10" DIP Main 40 LF 148.00$        N/A 5,920.00$         City provided material

10x10x6" Tee 1 EA 142.00$        142.00$            Discuss, City provided material and some labor

Alt 2 223 24" 22 1/2 Bend 1 EA 1,810.00$    1,810.00$         

Alt 2 222 24" 11 1/4 Bend 1 Ea 1,680.00$    1,680.00$         

6" Valve 1 EA 70.50$          N/A 70.50$              City provided material

10" Joint Restraint 2 EA 78.30$          -$             156.60$            

Sub-total 15,649.10$      

Baltimore Ave

Base/Alt Bid # Item QTY Unit Labor Material Total Cost Comment

Base 26 24" 45 Bend 2 EA 1,840.00$    N/A 3,680.00$         

Base 25 24" 11 1/4 Bend 1 EA 1,680.00$    N/A 1,680.00$         

Base 31 24" Joint Restraint 6 EA 400.00$        N/A 2,400.00$         

Concrete Encasement 4 Yds 575.00$        2,300.00$         

Sub-total 10,060.00$      

Decatur

Base/Alt Bid # Item QTY Unit Labor Material Total Cost Comment

8" Valve 3 EA 70.50$          N/A 211.50$            City provided material

6" Valve 4 EA 70.50$          N/A 282.00$            City provided material

8x8x6 Tee 2 EA 375.00$        750.00$            

Alt 1 108 8x8x4 Tee 2 EA 303.00$        606.00$            

8x8x6x6 Cross 1 EA 770.00$        N/A 770.00$            Davidson/Decatur Intersection

Base 40 Hydrant/Valve Assembly 1 EA 3,669.00$    3,669.00$         

4" DIP 21 LF 189.00$        3,969.00$         

Sub-total 10,257.50$      

Project Wide

Base/Alt Bid # Item QTY Unit Total Cost Comment

Air Release Valve 8 EA 5,500.00$    44,000.00$      Additional

-$                  

-$                  

Sub-total 44,000.00$      

Total CO 79,966.60$      

Unit cost

Unit cost

Unit cost

Unit cost



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,061 - authorizing the execution of Change Order No. 1 to the Non-Residential Mowing 

Contract (2022-15-M) to add and remove properties recently acquired or sold by the City at various 

locations within City limits for the not-to-exceed cost of $1,500.00, bringing the new contract amount to 

$42,500



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,061                     DATE:    August 16, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized to execute Change 

Order No. 1 to the original contract with Casey Smith, LLC, dba ServicePro, 15707 Saint 

Patrick’s Church Road, NW, Mount Savage, MD, 21545 for City Project “Non-residential 

Grass Mowing” (2022-15-M) to add/remove properties recently acquired or sold by the 

City of Cumberland at various locations within City limits for the increased not-to-exceed 

amount of One Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($1,500.00), bringing the 

new contract value to Forty-two Thousand, Five Hundred Dollars and No Cents 

($42,500.00). 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

Casey Smith LLC dba ServicePro Contract Price 

Original Contract Price $41,000.00 

Change Order No. 1 $  1,500.00 

New Contract Price $42,500.00 

 

Budget No. 001.078.20100 



City of Cumberland

Change Order Number:  1

Project:

City Project No.:

Purchase Order No.:

Contractor:

Vendor No.:

The Change Order modifies (adds or deletes work) the contract as follows:

Add / Delete Unit

Est # of 

Cuttings

Cost Per 

Cutting Description Delete Add

Mowing of City Owned Property Throughout the City of Cumberland

Add 1 20  $      20.00 Lamont Street - Additional Section $400.00

Add 1 20  $      25.00 Public Safety Building - Additional Section $500.00

Add 1 20  $      30.00 Memorial Hospital Campus - Additional Areas $600.00

TOTALS $0.00 $1,500.00

The Original Contract Sum was:

The Original Contract Sum was: $41,000.00

Previous Change Orders:

Contract Sum as a result of Previous Change Orders: $41,000.00

The Contract Sum increased/decreased by this Change Order: $1,500.00

The New Contract Sum as a result of this Change Order is: $42,500.00

Contract Time Change:

Recommended by:

Contracts Admin Officer Date

Contractor: Service Pro

Date

Accepted by:

Director of Engineering Date

Approved By:

City Administrator Date

Mayor and City Council Order Number Authorizing this Change Order:

No time added

Non-Residential Grass Mowing Contract

2022-15-M

2023-197

Service Pro

239



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 8/16/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Derrik Grimm 

 

Item Title: 

Change Order No 1 to Non-Residential Mowing Contract    

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

This change order is to add/remove properties recently acquired/sold by the City at various locations 

within City Limits.  These will be added to the contract to allow mowing through the end of the FY. 

These properties will now be part of the year 1 contract.  This will increase the current contract by 

$1,500.00.  The new contract value will be $42,500.00.  Original contract was approved with M&CC 

Order No. 27,043.  

 

Amount of Award: $1,500.00 

Budget number: 001.078.20100 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: City Funds 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,062 - authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

with the Family Crisis Resource Center for the reimbursement of police overtime costs not to exceed 

$8,000 to provide Domestic Violence Response Team (DVRT) follow-ups



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,062                    DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT,  the Chief of Police be and is hereby authorized to execute a Memorandum of 

Understanding by and between the Cumberland Police Department and the Family Crisis 

Resource Center, Inc. (FCRC) to provide police overtime in the amount not-to-exceed Eight 

Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($8,000) for Domestic Violence Response Team follow-ups. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 





Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date:   August 16, 2022 

Key Staff Contact:  Chief John “Chuck” Ternent/Sgt. Chris Golliday 

 

Item Title:  FCRC DVRT Grant 

 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Authorize the Chief of Police to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Family Crisis 
Resource Center to provide police overtime in the amount not to exceed $8,000, providing Domestic 
Violence Response Team (DVRT) Follow-Ups. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amount of Award:  $8,000 

Budget number: 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,063 - authorizing the City Administrator to execute a Letter of Agreement with Carver 

Community Center, Inc., stating that Carver accepts the assignment of the African American Heritage 

Preservation Program Grant Agreement that was originally assigned to the City effective April 28, 2021, 

and that the City agrees to provide matching funds for the grant in the amount of $100,000 as well as 

construction management and grant administration services



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,063                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT,  the City Administrator, Jeffrey F. Silka, be and is hereby authorized to execute 

a Letter of Agreement between the City and Carver Community Center, Inc., regarding the 

assignment of the African American Heritage Preservation Program Grant Agreement, 

effective April 28, 2021, to Carver, stating that Carver agrees to the assignment and that, in 

exchange, the City shall provide matching funds in the amount of $100,000 (One Hundred 

Thousand Dollars) and construction management and grant administration services. 

 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,064 - adopting the Strategic Economic Development Plan dated February, 2022, prepared by 

RKG Associates, inc.



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,064                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT,  the Strategic Economic Development Plan dated February 2022 and prepared 

by RKG Associates, Inc., be and is hereby adopted. 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 





















File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,065 - accepting the proposal from Local Government Insurance Trust (LGIT) to provide 

insurance coverages for FY23 for property, general and excess liability, police legal liability, auto 

comprehensive and liability, and boiler/machinery for the amount not-to-exceed $341,434.00





- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,065                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT,  the proposal from Local Government Insurance Trust (LGIT), 7225 Parkway 

Drive, Hanover, MD 21076, to provide the following insurance coverages be and is hereby 

accepted: 

Property  ..............................................................................  $195,856.00 

General Liability  ................................................................  21,973.00 

Police Legal Liability  .........................................................  33,871.00 

Auto  .....................................................................................  86,680.00 

Excess Liability ...................................................................  4,230.00 

Boiler and Machinery   .......................................................  0.00 

       ●     Subtotal   ................................................................  $342,610.00 

Less Stabilization Credit  ...................................................  (1,176.00) 

       ●     Total   .....................................................................  $341,434.00 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,066 - accepting the proposal from CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc. to provide Public Officials 

Liability coverage for FY23 through Ace American Insurance for the amount not-to-exceed $25,067



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,066                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT,  the proposal from CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc., 44 Baltimore Street, 

Cumberland, MD, to provide a Public Officials Liability policy effective July 1, 2022, to July 1, 

2023, through Ace American Insurance be and is hereby accepted in the amount not-to-exceed 

Twenty-Five Thousand, Sixty-Seven Dollars ($25,067.00). 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,067 - accepting the Sole Source proposal of Belt Paving, Inc., to pave Footer Place and the 

Decatur Street cross-streets, to include Davidson, Charles, Fulton, and Glenn, for the not-to-exceed lump 

sum cost of $147,767



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,067                  DATES:   August 16, 2022 
 

ORDERED, by the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

 

 THAT, the Sole Source proposal from Belt Paving, Inc., P.O. Box 1002, 

Cumberland, MD 21501-1002, to pave Footer Place and the Decatur Street cross-streets 

Davidson, Charles, Fulton, and Glenn be and is hereby accepted in the not-to-exceed 

lump sum cost of One Hundred Forty-seven Thousand, Seven Hundred Sixty-seven 

Dollars and No Cents ($147,767.00). 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Budget: 127.101.63000 



Matt Idleman <matt.idleman@cumberlandmd.gov>

Re: Decatur Street Change Order and Status 
1 message

Jeff Silka <jeff.silka@cumberlandmd.gov> Fri, Aug 12, 2022 at 9:40 AM
To: Robert Smith <robert.smith@cumberlandmd.gov>
Cc: Ken Tressler <ken.tressler@cumberlandmd.gov>, Mark Gandolfi <mark.gandolfi@cumberlandmd.gov>, Derrik Grimm
<derrik.grimm@cumberlandmd.gov>, Matt Idleman <matt.idleman@cumberlandmd.gov>

Approved.  
Jeffrey F. Silka
City Administrator
City of Cumberland
57 N. Liberty Street
Cumberland, MD 21502
Office (301) 759-6424
Cell (240) 609-9303

On Fri, Aug 12, 2022 at 9:38 AM Robert Smith <robert.smith@cumberlandmd.gov> wrote: 
Gents - Sorry for the long email.
 
I'm writing to give you an update on the status of the Decatur Street Water Main Project. There will be a change order
on next week's M&CC agenda to approve a change order of approximately $80K to cover additional fittings and pipe
that were required for the project. The additional fittings were needed to navigate through existing utilities in the field.
The change order will also extend the term of the contract 6.5 weeks to 9/30. We believe we'll have sufficient funds in
Jim Wilson's contract to cover the extra 6.5 weeks.
 
We have also removed numerous items from the contract, including 275' of 24" pipe. As of now, we are expecting to
have a credit on the project of approximately $193K, so the delta on the project would be an underrun ($113K) of the
project's awarded value. We don't know the true value at this point b/c some of the credit involves paving which is paid
for on a tonnage basis. 
 
At the end of the contract, MDE requires that we do a final change order that includes us formally being issued a credit
for any unused item, so we will deal with that at the end of the project.
 
I will issue a Press Release later today to announce that the tie-ins for the new water main will occur next week and
that the general Downtown/Decatur Heights area will not be without water but may see reduced pressures. We have 5
tie-ins to perform and then the pipe work will be complete.
 
Belt Construction will still have ADA ramps, sidewalk slabs, misc. concrete repairs and paving to perform after next
week. Most of these items are underway with the exception of paving.
 
Matt and I spoke with Belt Paving this morning and they are planning to pave the side streets which are not a part of
the water main contract. This includes Glenn, Fulton, Charles and parts of Davidson Street. The estimate for this work
is approximately $240K of which Columbia Gas paid the City $197K to perform. The extra paving is planned to occur
the week of 8/22, which will be prior to the paving work in the water main project. We will place an order on next week's
agenda to approve using Belt Paving to perform this work due to them already being in the area performing paving
work. Belt Paving will work from 4pm-12am. All milling and demo work will occur prior to the noise ordinance time
restriction of 10pm and only paving work will occur between 10pm-12am.
 
After the extra paving work is complete, Belt Paving will begin performing work contained within the Water Main project.
This work is expected to take 2-4 weeks to execute. I'll let you know how this progresses. Let me know if you have any
questions or concerns. 
 
Jeff - Please provide your concurrence to place a sole-source order on the M&CC agenda to perform the extra paving
work with Belt Paving. The justification will be that Belt Paving will already be working in the area on another City
contract, which saves a mobilization fee. 
 

https://www.google.com/maps/search/57+N.+Liberty+Street+Cumberland,+MD+21502+Office+(301?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/57+N.+Liberty+Street+Cumberland,+MD+21502+Office+(301?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/57+N.+Liberty+Street+Cumberland,+MD+21502+Office+(301?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:robert.smith@cumberlandmd.gov


Thanks.
 
Robert Smith, P.E. 
Director of Engineering and Utilities 
City of Cumberland
57 N. Liberty Street
Cumberland, MD 21502
Office 301-759-6600
Direct 301-759-6601
Cell 301-268-1180
FAX 301-759-6608
email: robert.smith@cumberlandmd.gov

https://www.google.com/maps/search/57+N.+Liberty+Street+Cumberland,+MD+21502+Office+301?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/57+N.+Liberty+Street+Cumberland,+MD+21502+Office+301?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/57+N.+Liberty+Street+Cumberland,+MD+21502+Office+301?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:robert.smith@cumberlandmd.gov


Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 8/16/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Matt Idleman, PE 

 

Item Title: 

Footer Place, Davidson Street, Charles Street, Fulton Street, and Glenn Street Paving (2022-18-PVG) 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

Sole source request to award Belt Paving Inc. with a contract to pave Footer Place and the Decatur 
Street cross streets (Davidson, Charles, Fulton and Glenn) for the estimated lump sum cost of 
$147,767.00 per the breakdown below: 

Footer Place - $9,477.50 

Davidson Street - $56,074 

Charles Street - $24,246 

Fulton Street - $26,141.50 

Glenn Street - $31,828 

Total: $147,767 

This project involves a 2” mill and overlay of Footer Place from Frederick to Davidson (approximately 
390 square yards), Davidson Street from Decatur to Linden (approximately 2,480 square yards), Charles 
Street from Henderson to Decatur (approximately 1,040 square yards), Fulton Street from Henderson to 
Decatur (approximately 1,130 square yards), and Glenn Street from Henderson to Decatur 
(approximately 1,415 square yards). This is a total of approximately 6,455 square yards of mill and 
overlay paving. 

Belt Paving was selected to perform this work since they are scheduled to perform a full-depth pave of 
Decatur Street as part of the 24” Crosstown Water Main Replacement project starting on the last week 
of August. The City is able to piggyback this work and save costs associated with mobilization fees.  

The project is budgeted for this fiscal year, and utilizes City funds.  

 

Amount of Award: $147,767 

Budget number: 127.101.63000 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: City Funds (Cash from Columbia Gas Agreement) 



City of Cumberland

Belt Paving, Inc.

Charles St., Fulton St. & Glenn St. Mill (2") & Pave (2") Estimate

Work performed in conjunction with Decatur Street Project

Charles Street
Approximate Area --- 1,040 SY

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension

1004 Maintenance of Traffic 1 ud 1,500.00$      1,500.00$            

5006 HMA 12.5 mm L-2 (0"-3") 120 tn 174.70$         20,964.00$          

5008 PA for Binder (Estimated) 120 tn 14.85$            1,782.00$            

Charles Street Estimated Total 24,246.00$       

Fulton Street
Approximate Area --- 1,130 SY

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension

1004 Maintenance of Traffic 1 ud 1,500.00$      1,500.00$            

5006 HMA 12.5 mm L-2 (0"-3") 130 tn 174.70$         22,711.00$          

5008 PA for Binder (Estimated) 130 tn 14.85$            1,930.50$            

Fulton Street Estimated Total 26,141.50$       

Glenn Street
Approximate Area --- 1,415 SY

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension

1004 Maintenance of Traffic 1 ud 1,500.00$      1,500.00$            

5006 HMA 12.5 mm L-2 (0"-3") 160 tn 174.70$         27,952.00$          

5008 PA for Binder (Estimated) 160 tn 14.85$            2,376.00$            

Glenn Street Estimated Total 31,828.00$       



Davidson Street (Decatur to Linden)
Approximate Area --- 2,480 SY

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension

1004 Maintenance of Traffic 2 ud 1,500.00$      3,000.00$            

5006 HMA 12.5 mm L-2 (0"-3") 280 tn 174.70$         48,916.00$          

5008 PA for Binder (Estimated) 280 tn 14.85$            4,158.00$            

Charles Street Estimated Total 56,074.00$       

Footer Place (Frederick to Davidson)
Approximate Area --- 390 SY

Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Extension

1004 Maintenance of Traffic 0 ud 1,500.00$      -$                      

5006 HMA 12.5 mm L-2 (0"-3") 50 tn 174.70$         8,735.00$            

5008 PA for Binder (Estimated) 50 tn 14.85$            742.50$               

Fulton Street Estimated Total 9,477.50$         



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,068 - accepting the proposal from CBIZ Insurance to provide general and excess liability 

coverage through Northland Casualty Co. for the Cedar Street CSO Underground Sewage Line with a 

rider for the Industrial Boulevard / RT 51 Water Line, effective July 28, 2022 to July 28, 2023, for the 

amount not-to-exceed $26,559







- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,068                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the proposal from CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc., 44 Baltimore Street, 

Cumberland, MD, to provide general and excess liability coverage for the Cedar Street CSO 

Underground Sewage Line with a rider for the Industrial Boulevard / RT 51 water line, to be 

effective July 28, 2022, to July 28, 2023, through Northland Casualty Co., be and is hereby 

accepted in the amount not-to-exceed Twenty-Six Thousand, Five Hundred Fifty-Nine Dollars 

($26,559.00). 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,069 - approving a $30,000 forgiveable loan through the Revolving Loan Fund to Dominic 

Dearcangelis to supplement Allegany County funding for a renovation project at 432 N. Centre Street



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,069                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, Dominic Dearcangelis be and is hereby approved to receive a forgivable loan 

in the amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) from the City of Cumberland Revolving 

Loan Fund to supplement Allegany County funding for a renovation project at 432 N. Centre 

Street, Cumberland.  

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The grant application is intended to restore, refurbish and revitalize the property located at 432 N. 

Centre Street, Cumberland, MD 21502, located in the area known as the Canada-Viaduct neighborhood. 

The neighborhood currently includes residential, commercial, and industrial settings, is part of the larger 

Cumberland downtown area, and is contained within the boundaries of the City of Cumberland’s Arts 

and Entertainment District.  The property was originally built in 1880.  

With the impending Baltimore Street renovation project now imminent, the development of upper-floor 

residential space and more modest commercial rental space will play an increasingly important role in 

the reestablishment of this area. The area, commonly known as Olde Cumberland, contains a number of 

important historical features – remnants of brick streets, the railroad viaduct, and a series of partial 

murals which add character and uniqueness to the neighborhood. The applicant personally resides in 

the area and has established two separate businesses in the corridor. This demonstrated commitment 

to elevating this neglected part of the City is important – the applicant has a vested interest in the area’s 

value and has taken considerable efforts to clean and maintain the surrounding blocks and railroad 

tracks which serve as a direct route into the community. 

The applicant seeks City of Cumberland match funding of $30,000  to help renovate the property – the 

last renovation efforts were made in the 1970’s and the property currently has significant structural and 

systemic issues which will be addressed. Further, all elements of the property will be brought in 

compliance with current code requirements. The property will be mixed-use, featuring approximately 

1500 square feet of flexible commercial space on the first floor, and with a second story residential 

apartment of the same square footage. The applicant anticipates the full project to take between 11-12 

months.  

If awarded, the project will create a modernized live-work development in the City’s commercial core, 

which could be attractive to retail businesses or artists.  Completion of the project will raise the assessed 

value of the property, increasing tax revenue for the community. Other properties in the neighborhood 

will benefit from this project in the increased value of their properties as well. 

The applicant has a demonstrated track record of project completion and is both well-established and 

respected in the community. The applicant anticipates continuing to manage businesses and reside in 

the community, reducing the likelihood of absentee management.  

 

FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 

Applicant purchased the property in December 2021 for $52,500, and anticipates a total project cost of 

$348,000. Applicant is requesting a total of $30,000 in matching funds and will provide the additional 

funds necessary to complete all detailed in the project scope. Allegations County is providing $18,000 in 

matching funds and  personnel cash $150,000 and bank funding $150,00 will also be used.  

For the commercial space, applicant anticipates an approximate rental of $15.00 per square foot 

totaling $1875.00 monthly in potential revenue. The applicant has already spoken with several potential 

leaseholders who have interest should the project be awarded. 



The upper-story residence will feature a 1-bedroom unit with off-street parking. Based upon applicant’s 

other rental properties in the area, it is anticipated the unit can be rented for approximately $1800 

monthly, and there is significant demand for properties which have updated electrical, plumbing, HVAC 

and modernized appliances and layouts.   

The applicant anticipates the property value will increase from $52,000 to approximately $250,000 once 

the project is complete.  

 

TIMELINE EXECUTION 

Assuming project is awarded by June 1, 2022, applicant anticipates the project timeline to be as follows: 

August  2022 – Demolition of existing structure, where appropriate, and debris removal 

August/September 2022 – Demolition and rebuilding of existing exterior façade to include replacement 

of exterior brickwork, new windows and replacement doors. Replacement and repair of first floor 

interior structural joist.   

September 2022 – Exterior painting. 

September-December 2022 – Replacement of plumbing and HVAC systems in first and second floor 

units. 

October 2022 – Remove and replace roof, interior framing. 

October 2022  – Replacement of soffit and fascia on property exterior, interior insulation. 

October-February 2023– Complete interior drywall 

March 2023– Interior painting, refinishing and/or replacement of all flooring, tile work in bathrooms, 

install kitchen cabinetry and complete all millwork. 

May 2023 – Complete project punch-list; finalize all items.   

 

LONG-TERM STRATEGY FOR GROWTH 

As mentioned above, as the Baltimore Street renovation project is completed, it is anticipated the cost 

of available commercial spaces or the purchase of properties in the City’s commercial core will increase 

significantly, and some start-up businesses or entrepreneurs may find it difficult to obtain spaces in that 

area which are affordable. The completion of this project expands the zone of opportunity for possible 

living/working arrangements to small businesses, and ensures that continued growth and development 

is possible in areas surrounding the primary commercial center.  

Already, the applicant has had discussions with two individual business owners seeking information 

about available commercial opportunities, and with the property’s connection to the GAP trail, and 

other downtown attractions, it is anticipated there will be increasing interest as the project gets 

underway.  



The applicant will maintain a regular marketing effort and the property may be listed in an available 

commercial real estate feed which will be managed through the City’s Arts & Entertainment District. 

Award of project funding for this purpose provides middle-market opportunities to small businesses or 

solo providers who may not have the means to purchase larger square footage or direct proximity to the 

downtown. 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,070 - accepting the proposal from PMA Companies to provide Workers Compensation 

Insurance for Fiscal Year 2023 for the estimated amount of $1,005,788 and authorizing execution of a 

Prefund Deductible Reimbursement and Security Agreement to effect the coverage



 

PMA COMPANIES

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 

In Partnership With 

CBIZ Insurance Services 

Prepared For 

Proposal Date 

June 17, 2022 

Mayor And City Council Of 
Cumberland, Maryland 

Proposed Policy Effective Date 

July1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 

Member of Old Republic Companies

www.pmacompanies.com



 

 
2PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

June 17, 2022 
 
 
 
Mr. Greg Smith 
CBIZ Insurance Services. 
44 Baltimore Street,  
Cumberland, Md 21502  
 
Dear Greg: 
 
Please find enclosed renewal proposal for the City of Cumberland.  It is hard to believe that 
sixteen years have already passed since we first wrote the account.  We are very pleased 
with the progress that has been made over this time and very much desire to continue our 
strong long term relationship with the city.  
 
As we have demonstrated over the last sixteen years, we understand that risk management 
for state and county governments, as well as municipalities, is unique requiring specialized 
expertise and flexible solutions.  Risk managers face the challenges of protecting employees 
and safeguarding public money.  PMA is a public entity risk management expert.  Our skills in 
risk control and cost management provide value to government entities. 
 
We solve risk management challenges that are unique to the industry, by offering industry 
expertise and comprehensive solutions. 
 
We have the insureds, strength, expertise, and solutions to prove it, including: 
PMA has specialized in risk solutions for public entities for over 50 years. 
Many of PMA’s municipal and state insureds have national award-winning risk management 
programs. 
 
We have over 100 years of experience and success in executing risk management programs 
for large, sophisticated insureds.  Our strength lies not only in what we offer, but also how we 
deliver results for your business.  We offer a truly collaborative relationship with you and 
Mayor And City Council Of Cumberland, Maryland to understand the unique loss drivers, 
create and implement the most favorable risk solution, and achieve your client’s desired 
financial results.  
 
Highlights of the tangible value that PMA delivers: 
 

• PMA is part of Old Republic International family of companies, one of the nation’s 50 
largest publicly held insurance organizations 

• Our insureds rate us at a 96% client satisfaction rate, per our latest Client Satisfaction 
Survey 

• Our large insured retention rates average 90% or higher 
• A.M. Best “A+” Superior rating for PMA Insurance Group 
• Structured Account Management by a dedicated team of risk management experts 



 

 
3PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

with a detailed annual action plan and measurable goals.  A dedicated Claim Service 
Manager oversees your program 

• One of the industry’s most user-friendly risk management information systems 
 
If you have any questions about the proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me at  
410-924-6730, or email me at gary_lowe@pmagroup.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Gary E. Lowe 

 
Gary E. Lowe, CPCU 
Sr. Underwriting Specialist 
Hunt Valley Branch Office 
 



 

 
4PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

Services 
 
 
We understand how vital service can be to realizing goals. 
 
PMA - Setting the Bar in Service Excellence 
Our entire company is focused on delivering tangible value for our insureds.  Our service-
driven culture permeates everything we do, and we care about our insureds’ business results 
as if they were our own. 
 
Our core values of passion, accountability, execution, professionalism, and teamwork drive 
our performance--so every day, every employee is working hard on behalf of those we serve. 
 
96% of respondents reported PMA meets or exceeds their service expectations in our latest 
survey. 
PMA was particularly recognized by our insureds for: 

• Prompt and aggressive claims management 
• Responsiveness and professionalism of customer service personnel 
• Knowledge and expertise in all areas of workers’ compensation insurance 

 
Claims Management - We deliver excellent claims management services.  The value that 
PMA delivers is enhanced by industry-leading programs to ensure quality, prevent fraud, and 
manage litigation. 
 
Our specialized services for large accounts include: 

• PMA Account Management, a structured program designed to optimize each insured’s 
performance.  A designated team of risk management professionals identifies the most 
significant loss drivers, organizational needs and special servicing requirements, 
creates a customized action plan, and is accountable for results. 

• A designated Claims Service Manager serves as a single point of contact for insureds 
and serves as their liaison, overseeing and coordinating services. 

 
PMA Claims Management-PMA Claims Management Services delivers second-to-none 
solutions and service. The value PMA Companies creates for clients extends beyond 
servicing claims. We deliver industry-leading programs, including quality assurance, fraud 
prevention and litigation management, all of which translates into tangible value for clients. 
 
PMA Managed Care Services-PMA provides integrated, industry-leading Managed Care 
capabilities to ensure seamless delivery of services to our clients and minimize costs. Client 
benefit from PMA Managed Care offers a comprehensive program of services, including 
Complex Bill Review, Fee Schedule and UCR Reductions, Pharmacy Benefit Management, 
PPO Networks, Nurse Case Management, Peer Review and Utilization Review. PMA's 
Managed Care Program combines our risk management and medical expertise, technology 
systems, and third-party relationships. This approach enables us to more effectively assess 
and manage cases with the goal of maximizing outcomes while minimizing costs for clients. 



 

 
5PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

 
Managed Care Savings - PMA provides integrated, industry-leading Managed Care 
capabilities to ensure seamless delivery of services to our insureds and manage costs.  PMA 
Managed Care offers a comprehensive program of services, including Durable Medical 
Equipment Networks, fee schedule and UCR reductions, Out-of-Network Program, panel 
creation, pharmacy benefit management, PPO Networks, complex bill review, Physical 
Therapy Networks, nurse case management, peer review, product management, quality 
management and utilization review. 
 
Risk Management Information Services (RMIS) - PMA Cinch® is one of the most capable 
and user-friendly risk management information systems available today.  Our Risk 
Management Information System provides insureds with 24-hour access to claim and loss 
data.  Insureds can also choose to have customized report views developed for their specific 
business needs.  PMA Cinch® is designed to help insureds achieve cost savings via 
improved risk analysis capabilities, quicker corrective action, and automated cost allocation. 
 
Risk Control Services - Our comprehensive and consultative approach provides better 
protection for businesses and employees, reduced costs, and better bottom-line results.  Our 
program includes in-depth risk management assessment, an analysis of historical losses 
versus industry benchmarks, and development of an action plan to reduce loss potential 
through best practices.  We provide scheduled stewardship reports to document and 
communicate our shared results with insureds.  PMA offers a full range of resources and 
services, including occupational health, liability and property protection services. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
6PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

 
 
 

WORKERS’ 
COMPENSATION 

 
Coverage and Limits 

 

Workers’ Compensation Part I: Statutory State Requirements 

Employers’ Liability Part II: 
Bodily Injury by 
Accident: 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

  Bodily Injury by Disease: $1,000,000 Each Employee 
  Bodily Injury by Disease: $1,000,000 Policy Limit 

 
States Covered: MD, PA, 
Estimated Payroll: $12,383,710 
Included Risk Control Hours: As required for service plan 

 
 
Experience Modifications: NCCI:  1.80 PA:   .827 

 
 

 Pre-Funded Deductible 

Commission: Net 

Estimated Standard Premium: $ 725,074 

Estimated  Premium Discount: -$   76,858 

Estimated Deductible Credit -$ 367,106 

Estimated Total Deductible Premium $ 281,110 

Terrorism: $     2,348   

Catastrophe $     1,115   

Expense Constant: $        180 

Total Estimated Deposit Premium: $ 284,753 

State Assessments and Surcharges: $          95          

Total Including Surcharges $ 284,848 

  

  



 

 
7PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

SCHEDULE OF CASH PAYMENTS: PREFUNDED DEDUCTIBLE ( Direct Bill 10 Equal) 
 

 Premium 
Cash 

Collateral 
Fund 

Claims 
Services 

Fund 

 
Total 

1st Installment $ 28,475.30 $   70,000 $20,940 $ 119,415.30 

PA Assessment $        95.00     N/A N/A $          95.00  

Total 1st Installment $ 28,570.30 $   70,000 $20,940 $ 119,510.30 

Nine Remaining Monthly 
Installments  

$ 28,475.30 
Each Installment) 

$   70,000 
(Each Installment) $         0 

$   98,475.30 
(Total Each  
Installment) 

Total Annual Deposits $ 284,848  $ 700,000 $20,940 $ 1,005,788  
*Estimated state assessments/surcharges are payable in addition to premium and are subject to change and/or adjustment. 

 
Forms and endorsements per expiring with any updated editions and mandatory state forms. 
 
The following endorsements are not applicable to workers’ compensation: 

• Knowledge of Occurrence 
• Broad Form All States 
• Notice of Occurrence 
• Unintentional E&O 
• Broad Form Named Insured 

 



 

 
8PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION –  
PRE-FUNDED LARGE DEDUCTIBLE PROGRAM 
 
In a Pre-funded Large Deductible Program the insured assumes a portion of its own risk in 
the form of a per occurrence deductible.  Insureds are protected from catastrophic losses by 
a policy aggregate loss limitation.  The insurance carrier issues a workers’ compensation 
policy and provides full claims, legal, and loss prevention services, while also providing 
statutory (or policy limits) coverage in excess of the insured’s deductible and aggregate under 
the Large Deductible Program. 
 
Claim payments are made by the insurance carrier and are reimbursed by the insured--this is 
a statutory requirement in all states.  Rather than provide a Letter of Credit, or another type of 
secured collateral, the insured provides cash to establish a Cash Collateral Fund for the 
expected claim payments.  Reimbursements to PMA are paid by the Cash Collateral Fund.  
Investment income on the Cash Collateral Fund is given as an up-front reduction of 
deductible premium. 
 
Program Factors 
 

• The deductible limit is $350,000 per each occurrence and inclusive of Allocated Loss 
Adjustment Expense (ALAE).  (See Section 6 for additional information.) 

 
• Estimated payroll at inception of the policy is $12,383,710. 

 
• The deductible premium, $281,110 is calculated based on a rate to payroll of 2.270 

per $100 of payroll.  The deductible premium set forth in the table above is the 
minimum and will be adjusted upward if audited payroll exceeds the estimated payroll. 

 
• The aggregate limit, $1,800,000, is calculated based on a rate to payroll of 14.535 

per $100 of payroll.  The aggregate limit set forth in the table above is the minimum 
and will be adjusted upward if audited payroll exceeds the estimated payroll. 

 
Medical Cost Containment Expense 
 
There is a 20% charge applied to any savings which we obtain resulting from medical bill 
repricing and bill audit activity.  See Additional Information section of this proposal for full 
details 
 



 

 
9PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

 
Deductible Reimbursement and Security Agreement and Calculations 
 
A Deductible Reimbursement and Security Agreement will be executed by PMA and Mayor 
And City Council Of Cumberland, Maryland that will specify the terms and conditions of the 
Deductible Program.  It will set forth the terms and conditions of the Cash Collateral Fund and 
other security requirements.  The insured must sign and return the Deductible 
Reimbursement and Security Agreement no later than forty-five (45) days following policy 
inception. 
 
Security 
 
Cash Collateral Fund:  PMA shall establish an initial Cash Collateral Fund of $680,000 
payable in ten monthly installments.  Paid Losses, ALAE, and Loss Based Assessments 
(LBA) up to your deductible limit and aggregate will be deducted from this fund monthly to 
satisfy your obligations.  After twenty four (24) months, and annually thereafter, the Cash 
Collateral Fund will be adjusted by PMA based on the following formula: 
 
Cash Collateral Fund 
 
(Incurred Losses + Allocated Loss Adjustment Expense + Loss Based Assessments) x the 
Loss Development Factor 
 
Loss Development Factors (LDF) 
 
The following schedule of LDFs will be applied to the calculation of the required Cash 
Collateral Fund.  Incurred and paid losses will be limited to the insured's deductible and 
aggregate limits in the calculation of the Cash Collateral Fund.   
 

Adjustment 
# 

Months After Policy 
Inception 

Loss Development Factor 

1 24 1.40 

2 36 1.25 

3 48 1.15 

4 60 1.10 

 
 
Not less than twelve (12) months after the final adjustment, and annually thereafter, a 
collateral review will be completed by PMA to determine the required Cash Collateral Fund 
amount and the fund will be adjusted accordingly. 
 



 

 
10PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

 
CLAIMS SERVICE FUND 
 

We estimate your Claims Service Fund to be $20,940.  The Claims Service Fund will be 
adjusted once at twenty four) months after inception of the policy based on the actual 
number and type of claims reported to PMA.  The fees to be used are shown: 
 

Type of Claim Estimated Number Fee Total 

Record Only  21 $      40 $   840 

Medical Only  29 $    150 $   4,350 

Lost-time   14 $ 1,125 $ 15,750 

Total $ 20,940 
 
 



 

 
11PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

 

 
Surcharges and Assessments 
 

Certain states impose surcharges and assessments payable in addition to premium.  These 
surcharges and assessments are based on a number of factors, including written premium, 
total compensation payments, and/or paid losses.  Your quote includes estimated surcharges 
and assessments for those states where you currently have operations.  The estimated 
amount of surcharges and assessments will be adjusted by PMA based on the results of your 
audit. 
 
If, during a policy year, you begin operations in a state that has surcharges or assessments, 
upon completion of the audit, we will bill you for same. 
 
If, during a policy year, a state in which you have operations enacts a new or modified 
surcharge or assessment, upon completion of the audit, we will bill you for same. 
 
If a state in which you have operations retro-actively enacts a surcharge or assessment 
effective for the policy period in which we provided insurance, upon completion of the audit, 
we will bill you for same. 
 
A list of the current expected state surcharges and assessments, which are subject to change 
retroactively, will be provided to you for review upon request. 
 
Assessments are billed through our monthly billing system (AMPS) for Large Deductible and 
included in the Tax Multiplier for Retro/Retention. 
 
. 



 

 
12PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

Implementation Plan 
 
With a 96% client satisfaction rate and large account retention rates averaging 90% or higher, it is about the people, and PMA is 
known for the positive and long-term relationships we develop.  Our team is accessible, responsive, and dedicated to realizing our 
insureds’ core objectives.  We have a performance-oriented culture that highly values our mutual success. 
 
The PMA service team consists of results-oriented professionals that are committed to developing a partnership with Cbiz Insurance 
Ser. and Mayor And City Council Of Cumberland, Maryland.  PMA’s service team is ready to execute a collaborative implementation 
plan to ensure a smooth and efficient transition. 
 

Account Management Team Telephone Email 

Producer: Edward R. Seward 301-784-2371 Eseward@CBIZ.COM 

Underwriter: Gary E. Lowe 410-527-3223 gary_lowe@pmagroup.com 

Claims Service Manager: Jamie Windell 410-527-3265 Jamie_Windell@pmagroup.com 

Risk Control Specialist: John Murray 717-226-0385 johnpmurray@comcast.net 

Information Specialist: Kat Snowe 
717-730-8095 
814-414-4156 

 
Kat_Snowe@pmagroup.com 

To Report a Claim: Fax:  1-888-329-2721        On-line:  www.pmagroup.com 

General Inquiries: 1-888-4PMANOW (1-888-476-2669) 

 
 
Program bound with PMA 

Action (as applicable) Date 
Provide policy numbers and confirmation of coverages 
Schedule date of orientation meeting 
Issue automobile identification cards 
Issue workers’ compensation posting notices 
Establish first notice of loss reporting preference 
Issue welcome/claims kit 
Compile account contact information 

Within 5 days of effective date 

Issue policies Within 10 days of effective date 

Issue physician panels for all locations Within 15 days of effective date 

Service orientation meeting – Claims and Risk Control 
Develop/review special handling guidelines 
Confirm account contact information and workflow processes—Claims 
Acknowledgement letters 
Establish threshold for automatic reserve change 
Determine loss run/reporting format 
Review panels and PMA’s medical providers 
Review pharmacy benefit management program 
Assign location coding for Claims reporting 
Begin PMA Cinch® installation process 
Confirm Risk Control/safety contacts and information 
Agree on Claims and Risk Control annual service action plan 

Within 30 days of receiving binding order 
or effective date 

Complete PMA Cinch® training Within 30 days of effective date 

 



 

 
13PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

  

Additional Information 
 
 
 
As used in this proposal, “ALLOCATED LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE” (or “ALAE”) 
means, but shall not be limited to, the following costs which can be directly allocated to a 
particular claim: 
 

1. Fees and other related expenses of attorneys or other authorized representatives 
where permitted for legal services, whether by outside vendors or our employees. 

 
2. Court, alternative dispute resolution and other specific items of expense whether 

incurred by an outside vendor or by one of our employees, including but not limited to: 
 

• Medical examination of a claimant to determine the extent of liability, degree of 
permanency or length of disability; 

• Expert medical or other testimony; 
• Autopsy; 
• Witnesses and summonses; 
• Copies of documents such as birth and death certificates, and medical 

treatment records; 
• Stenographic; 
• Laboratory and x-ray; 
• Fees or costs for surveillance or other professional investigations which are 

conducted as part of the handling of a claim; 
• Fees or costs for loss prevention and engineering personnel and fees or costs 

for rehabilitation nurses or other nurses, if the cost of such nurses is not 
included in losses, for services which are conducted as part of the handling of a 
claim; 

• Appeal bond costs and appeal filing fees. 
 

3. Medical cost containment expenses incurred with respect to a particular claim, 
whether through utilization of an outside vendor or performed internally by our 
employees for the purpose of controlling losses, to ensure that only reasonable and 
necessary costs of services are paid.  The expenses include but are not limited to: 

 
• Bill auditing expenses for any medical or vocational services rendered, 

including hospital bills, (in-patient or out-patient) nursing home bills, physician 
bills, chiropractic bills, medical equipment charges, pharmacy charges, physical 
therapy bills, medical or vocational rehabilitation vendor bills; 

• Hospital and other treatment utilization reviews, including pre-certification/pre-
admission, and concurrent or retrospective reviews; 

• Access fees and other expenses incurred with respect to managed care 



 

 
14PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

organizations, such as, but not limited to, preferred provider 
network/organizations, medical provider networks, and health care 
organizations;  

• Medical fee review panel expenses. 
 

4. Expense(s) not defined as losses which are directly related to and directly allocated to 
the handling of a particular claim and are required to be performed by statute or 
regulation. 

 
The following shall not be included as Allocated Loss Adjustment Expense: 
 

• Salaries, overhead and traveling expenses of our employees, except for 
employees while doing activities previously listed as allocated expenses; 

• Fees paid to independent claims professionals or attorneys (hired to perform 
the function of claim investigation normally performed by claim adjusters) for 
developing and investigating a claim so that a determination can be made of the 
cause, extent or responsibility, for the injury, disease, or damage, including 
evaluation and settlement of covered claims; 

• Expenses which are defined as either an indemnity or medical loss. 
 
MEDICAL COST CONTAINMENT EXPENSE COMPONENT OF ALLOCATED LOSS 
ADJUSTMENT EXPENSE 
 
Your pricing structure consists of the following components: 
 

1. There is a 20% charge applied to any savings which we obtain resulting from the 
following medical bill repricing and bill audit activity: 

 
• Application of preferred provider network/organization discounts to physician 

bills and hospital bills; 
• Application of physical therapy specialty network, durable medical equipment 

specialty network and other specialty network discounts; 
• Repricing as a result of negotiation of out-of-network physician bills, pharmacy 

bills and hospital bills; 
• Repricing of medical bills, pharmacy bills and hospital bills by reviewing the bills 

and applying state rules/edits and/or proprietary rules/edits; 
• Repricing of medical bills, pharmacy bills and hospital bills by our medical 

review and complex bill review team; 
• Repricing of pharmacy bills as part of our pharmacy benefit management 

program; 
• Repricing to any applicable state mandated fee schedule; 
• Elimination of unrelated, unauthorized and/or unapproved treatment. 

 
The term savings means the difference between the amount billed by the physician, 
hospital, pharmacy and other medical providers and the amount we ultimately paid.  
We adhere to state mandated fee schedules and/or usual and customary pricing for 



 

 
15PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

certain procedures, may contract with preferred provider networks/organizations which 
have contractual arrangements with certain providers to perform certain procedures at 
pre-determined rates (which may be below fee schedule), and may utilize other fee 
negotiation resources that we determine are necessary and appropriate to determine 
the amount that should be paid on any given medical bill. 

 
2. The percentage of savings is charged to the claim file as an Allocated Loss 

Adjustment Expense unless we are required by applicable state law to charge it to the 
claim file as a different component of the applicable rating plan. 

 
3. Certain items are charged separately to the claim file as an Allocated Loss Adjustment 

Expense, including: 
 

• Utilization review services on a per activity basis; 
• Independent medical examinations; 
• Second opinions by a physician; 
• Chiropractic review; 
• Physician advisor/physician consultant programs; and 
• Nurse case management charges. 

 



 

 
16PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

Policyholder Notice:  Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage 
 

 

Coverage for acts of terrorism is included in your policy. You are hereby notified that under 
the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended in 2015, the definition of act of terrorism has 
changed. As defined in Section 102(1) of the Act: The term “act of terrorism” means any act 
that is certified by the Secretary of the Treasury—in consultation with the Secretary of 
Homeland Security, and the Attorney General of the United States—to be an act of terrorism; 
to be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to 
have resulted in damage within the United States, or outside the United States in the case of 
certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United States mission; and to have been 
committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population 
of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States 
Government by coercion. Under your coverage, any losses resulting from certified acts of 
terrorism may be partially reimbursed by the United States Government under a formula 
established by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended. However, your policy may 
contain other exclusions which might affect your coverage, such as an exclusion for nuclear 
events. Under the formula, the United States Government generally reimburses 85% through 
2015; 84 % beginning on January 1, 2016; 83 % beginning on January 1, 2017; 82 % 
beginning on January 1, 2018; 81 % beginning on January 1, 2019 and 80 % beginning on 
January 1, 2020 of covered terrorism losses exceeding the statutorily established deductible 
paid by the insurance company providing the coverage. The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as 
amended, contains a $100 billion cap that limits U.S. Government reimbursement as well as 
insurers’ liability for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism when the amount of such 
losses exceeds $100 billion in any one calendar year. If the aggregate insured losses for all 
insurers exceed $100 billion, your coverage may be reduced. 
 

The portion of your annual premium that is attributable to coverage for acts of terrorism that 
is: shown in the premium summary does not include any charges for the portion of losses 
covered by the United States government under the Act. 
 
 
Other Disclosures 
 
This insurance proposal by PMA is intended for explanatory and reference purposes only in 
order to identify potential coverages, forms, limits of insurance and premium offered solely to 
you by PMA.  Any potential insurance coverages or limits of insurance requested in an 
application or coverage specifications that have not been identified in this insurance proposal 
are not offered to you by PMA.  No liability will be imposed upon PMA for its declination to 
offer such insurance coverages or limits of insurance to you.  Neither PMA, nor any of its 
insurers, agents, employees or successors, shall be liable to you or other third parties for any 
direct, indirect, incidental, special or consequential damages that arise out of the use of this 
insurance proposal. 
 
This is an insurance proposal only and cannot bind PMA as to any coverage offered.  This 
proposal does not represent the terms of any contract of insurance that may ultimately be 
issued.  You should not terminate any in-force insurance coverages, or decline insurance 



 

 
17PMACOMPANIES

Insurance Proposal 

coverages elsewhere, until you have received written confirmation from PMA that insurance 
coverage has been formally issued by PMA.  PMA makes no representations or warranties 
that the insurance coverage applied for will be issued.  Final approval for insurance products 
is made solely by PMA. 
 
Every effort has been made by PMA to provide correct, current, and accurate information 
regarding this proposal.  However, the information contained in this proposal is subject to 
change without notice by PMA.  The calculation of premiums, and other program features, 
included in this document have been established based upon the information provided by you 
and your representatives.  Additional locations, changes in exposure, or other variations may 
make it necessary to re-evaluate the proposal, premium calculations and plan factors. 
 
It is PMA’s intention to honor any agreement that may be reached with you.  PMA is required 
to follow all regulatory and filing requirements in effect in the states where you have 
exposure.  PMA shall adhere to all state laws and regulatory requirements and shall not issue 
any form that contravenes a governing law, rule or regulation. 
 
Nothing in this proposal is intended to be, nor should it be relied upon as, tax or legal advice.  
You are advised to consult with your tax advisor and/or attorney regarding the consequences 
to you of the insurance programs outlined in this proposal. 
 
IRS Circular 230 Disclosure.  To ensure compliance with any requirements imposed by the 
IRS, we inform you that federal tax advice (if any) contained in this proposal is not intended 
or written to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose of (i) avoiding penalties under the 
Internal Revenue Code, or (ii) promoting, marketing, or recommending to another party any 
transaction or matter addressed herein. 
 
As a PMA insured, PMA may use your name and logo in PMA’s marketing materials and may 
identify you as an entity to which PMA provides insurance services or products. 
 
This proposal is intended for you only and should not be disseminated, copied, or sent to a 
third party without the prior express written approval of PMA. 
 



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,070                     DATE:    August 16, 2022_ 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the proposal of PMA Companies to provide Workers Compensation 

Insurance for the period July 1, 2022, through July 1, 2023, be and is hereby accepted in 

the estimated amount of One Million, Five Thousand, Seven Hundred Eighty-Eight 

Dollars ($1,005,788.00) based on the following: 

 

Premium   $    284,848 

Cash Collateral Fund  $    700,000 

Claims Service Fund  $      20,940 

Total    $ 1,005,788 

 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the City Administrator be and is hereby authorized 

to execute a Prefund Deductible Reimbursement and Security Agreement by and between 

PMA Companies and the City to effect this coverage. 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,071 - accepting the sole source proposal from Amazon Web Services to provide server 

hosting and support services for FY23 for the amount not-to-exceed $30,000





- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,071                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT,  the sole source proposal from Amazon Web Services to provide server hosting 

and support services for FY23 be and is hereby accepted in the amount not-to-exceed Thirty 

Thousand Dollars ($30,000). 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,072 - accepting the proposal from CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc. to provide risk management 

services for FY23 for the amount not-to-exceed $34,125





- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,072                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT,  the proposal from CBIZ Insurance Services, Inc., 44 Baltimore Street, 

Cumberland, MD, to risk management services for Fiscal Year 2023 be and is hereby accepted 

in the amount not-to-exceed Thirty Four Thousand, One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars 

($34,125.00). 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,073 - appointing individuals to various boards and commissions of the City



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,073                     DATE:    August 16, 2022  
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the following board and commission appointments be and are hereby approved: 

Board/Commissions Seat Member Term 

Administrative Appeals 

Board 

5 Steven Hartsock, PhD 1/1/22 – 1/1/25* 

DDC Primary - 1 Larry Jackson 1/1/22 – 1/1/25* 

DDC Primary -2 Sandi Saville 1/1/22 – 7/1/24* 

DDC Primary -4 Doug Schwab 1/1/22 – 1/1/25* 

DDC Primary - 5 Leigh Ann Sipple 1/1/22 – 7/1/24* 

DDC Primary - 6 Lori Lepley 9/1/22 – 9/1/25 

DDC Primary – 7 David Romero 1/1/22 – 1/1/25* 

DDC Primary – 8 John Buchanan 1/1/22 – 7/1/25* 

DDC Primary – 9 Ryan Brenneman 9/1/22 – 9/1/25 

DDC Secondary - 1 Ed Huber 1/1/22 – 1/1/25* 

DDC Secondary - 3 Penny Walker 9/1/22 – 9/1/25 

DDC Citizen-at-

Large 

Rhett Wolford 9/1/22 – 9/1/25 

Housing Authority 1 J. Eric Delaney 11/1/22 – 11/1/23 

Human Relations Comm. 1 Michele Walker 1/1/22 – 1/1/25* 

Human Relations Comm. 3 Patricia Painter 1/1/22 – 1/1/25* 

Shade Tree Commission 3 Andrew Roman 1/1/22 – 1/1/25* 

Shade Tree Commission 6 Dennis Bittinger 1/1/21 – 1/1/25* 

Zoning Board of Appeals 3 Tom Farrell 9/1/22 – 9/1/25 

 

*Correction of Order No. 26,939 

 BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that the appointment of Anita Simmons as a City Appointee 

to the Evitts Creek Steering Committee be and is hereby rescinded. 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 


	Top
	1.	Statement of closed meeting
	1.	Presentation - recognition of organizations
	.	Maintenance Division Monthly Report - July 2022
	Maint. Div. Report - Jul_001

	.	Report of Fire Department Activity for the Month of July, 2022
	SKM_C25822081115160

	.	Report - Police Dept. Monthly Report - July 2022
	July 2022

	.	Report - Util. Div. F/W/S Monthly Report - June 2022
	SKM_C25822071515040

	1.	Minutes - Clsd. and Wrk.- 4/5; Clsd. and Wrk.- 4/12; Work and Reg.- 4/19
	2022-04-05 Closed Session Minutes-BACK SUMMARY PAGE ONLY
	Work Session Mins-AgnRev-H_M-M&CC UpDts 04-05-22
	2022-04-12 Closed Session Minutes-BACK SUMMARY PAGE ONLY
	2022-04-12 Work Session Mins-BaltStMitig-CEDC StgcPlanUpdate
	2022-04-19 M&CC Regular Meeting Minutes
	Work Session Mins-Budget-AgendaReview-Allegany HS Facade  04-19-22

	1.	Ordinance 3922 - ZTA 22-02
	Ordinance No. 3922

	2.	Ordinance 3923 - 7-9 Arch
	Ordinance No. 3923

	3.	Ordinance No. 3924 - 105 Grand Avenue
	Ordinance No. 3924

	.	Resolution 2022-06 - Cumberland Outdoor Club Tax Credit 2022-2023
	CumbOutdoorClub tax credit request 2022-2023
	Res 2022-06 CumbOutdrClb TaxCredit 2022-2023_not_signed

	.	Ordinance 3925
	728 Baker Street Transfer Ordinance

	.	Order 27,051 - FY23 ACHD MOU Opioid Interdiction Grant
	2022-08-16 Order 27051 FY23-MOU w-ACHD-Opioid Drug Interdiction Grant
	FY23 Health Department Opioid Operational Command Center Grant
	FY23 Health Department Opioid Operational Command Center grant

	.	Order 27,052 - FY23 MOU w-ACHD - Opioid Misuse Prevention Program
	2022-08-16 Order 27052 MOU-PD-HealthDept OpioidMisusePreventionGrant
	FY23 Health Department Opioid Misuse Prevention Program
	FY23 Health Department Opioid Misuse Prevention Program

	.	Order 27,053 - STD Exemptions 2022-2023
	2022-08-16 Order 27053 STD exemptions-Romero-Rhee-Humbertson
	STD Exemption Requests
	Circosta STD Exempt. Request

	.	Order 27,054 - FY23 MCIN Grant
	2022-08-16 Order 27054 FY23 - MCIN Grant
	FY23 MCIN grant
	FY23 MCIN grant

	.	Order 27,055 - Sole Source Water Meters and Smartpoints-L/B Water
	2022-08-16 Order 27055 Sole source LB Water meters and smartpoints
	WaterDist Summary Sheet - Sole Source LB Water

	.	Order 27,056 - 6" PVC Pipe - Avondale Water Line Project, L/B Water
	2022-08-16 Order 27056-PVC Water Pipe-Avondale Ave-L-B Water Service
	Water Dist Summary Sheet - PVC Water Pipe -LB Water

	.	Order 27,057 - Final Design/Bidding Services; Bennett, Brewer & Associates, City Project 2-22-W
	2022-08-16 Order 27057 S. End Water Line Replcmnt 2-22-W_BB&A
	BBA Final Engineering Proposal
	Agenda Worksheet

	.	Order 27,058 - Fayette St. Bridge Quitclaim Bill of Sale-CSX to the City (43-18-BR)
	2022-08-16 Order 27058 Quitclaim Fayette St Bridge
	Fayette St Executed Bill of Sale
	Agenda Worksheet - Bill of Sale

	.	Order 27,059 - Fayette St. Bridge Constr. Agreement (43-18-BR)
	Agenda Worksheet - Construction Agreement
	Comparison v1 to v2
	2022-08-16 Order 27059 CSX Constr.Agmt_FayetteStBridge 43-18-BR

	.	Order 27,060 C.O. No. 2 Decatur St. 24" Crosstown Water Main Rplcmnt., 31-17-W
	2022-08-16 Order 27060 CO 2-Decatur St 24-inch Watermain-CarlBelt
	Executed Change Order
	Agenda Worksheet
	31-17-W change order tracker

	.	Order 27,061 - C.O. #1 to Non-Res. Mowing Contract, Project 2022-15-M
	2022-08-16 Order 27061 - CO-1 Non-Residential Grass Mowing_2022-15-M -ServicePro
	2022-15-M Change Order 1
	Agenda Worksheet

	.	Order 27,062 - FY23 F.C.R.C. DVRT Grant
	2022-08-16 Order 27062 MOU FCRC-DVRT Grant FY23
	FY23 FCRC DVRT grant
	FY23 FCRC DVRT grant

	.	Order 27,063 - Carver Assignment
	2022-08-16 Order 27063 Carver Community Center re Historical Trust Grant
	Carver Letter of Agreement

	.	Order 27,064 - Strategic Ec Dev Plan
	2022-08-16 Order 27064 Strategic Ec Dev Plan
	2022 Strategic Economic Development Plan

	.	Order 27,065 - LGIT FY23
	LGIT FY23
	2022-08-16 Order 27065 LGIT FY23 Insurances

	.	Order 27,066 - CBIZ Public Officials Policy
	2022-08-16 Order 27066 CBIZ public officials
	CBIZ - pulibc officials liability

	.	Order 27,067 - Footer Pl., Davidson St., Charles St., Fulton St., and Glenn St. Paving; 2022-18-PVG
	2022-08-16 Order 27067 Sole Source-DecaturCrossStreets; BeltPaving
	Silka Sole Source Approval Email
	Agenda Worksheet
	City of Cumberland Charles, Fulton & Glenn St., Davidson Extended & Footer Place

	.	Order 27,068 - CBIZ CSO Sewer Line
	CBIZ - Cedar St Line
	2022-08-16 Order 27068 CBIZ Cedar St Insurance

	.	Order 27,069 - Forgiveable Loan Dearcangelis
	2022-08-16 Order 27069 Dearcangelis Foregiveable Loan
	DeArcangelis_Invest Allegany_Business Plan (1) (1)

	.	Order 27,070 - PMA
	City  of Cumberland  Renewal WC Proposal eff 7-1-22 (1)
	2022-08-16 Order 27070 PMA FY23 workers comp insurance

	.	Order 27,071 - Amazon hosting services
	Amazon sole source approval
	2022-08-16 Order 27071 Amazon IT software

	.	Order 27,072 - CBIZ Risk Management
	CBIZ Risk Management Invoice
	2022-08-16 Order 27072 CBIZ risk management services

	.	Order 27073 - Board and Commissions
	2022-08-16 Order 27073 Appointments Board and Commissions

	Bottom

